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Acquired sizable portfolio of medical office buildings.
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Locked in $165 million of long-term
financing at low interest rates.
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Generated $5.6 million gain on $32 million of property sales.
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Received prestigious Office Building of the Year (TOBY)
award for One Riverwood Place. This award honors
excellence in property management.



Great Lakes REIT is the only pure office REIT focused on the Great Lakes region.
We own 46 properties and manage six million square feet of primarily suburban s
office space.

We seek to create shareholder value by: 1 acquiring high-quality, underper~
forming office properties, often at a discount to replacement cost; 2 increasing.
rents through leasehold improvements and property management/leasing
expertise; and 3 harvesting profits from property sales. We believe this approach
provides more predictable cash flow and minimized development risk. o

In 2002, Great Lakes REIT initiated monthly dividend payments. We are one of
only five public REITs offering monthly dividends. Our dividend yield exceeded
9.7% at year-end 2002, and we have consistently ranked among the highest-
yielding office REITs nationwide.

“What makes & great REIT?” is the theme of this year’s report. The following

~ pages describe how we implement our strategies to create shareholder value. o
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- YeARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 1999 2000 2001
Total revenues $ 76,770 $ 89,043 $ 92,657 $ 96,133
Income before gain on sale of properties 15,349 18,178 20,093 19,884
" Netincomeapplicable tocommonshares 16,633 24942 30533 17964 ,
= Diluted earnings per common share 098 1.51 1.84 1.08 CoAs
Funds from operations (unaudited)"? 29,054 32,178 35,808 37,271 T o
Funds from operations per share? 1.71 1.94 2.15 2.24 . -

' Cash dividends per common share’ . 124 134 1.91. 1.60
_Barasck Suppr DAt SR e e R
Properties, net of accumulated deprec1at10n $ 426,862 $ 438,177 $ 414,002 $ 465,746
Total assets 443,689 455,202 431,610 486,492
Total long-term debt 193,623 211,663 190,911 257,078

-3 Fhe White Paper o Funds From Operations approved by rhe Board q'Govemars of the National Assotiation of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT") in April 2002 (she “White -
e Paper”) defines Funds front Operations s net-in (lua} mmputed in accordance with GAAP), excheding gains {or losses} from dzbtratm:tmngmdmla—ufpmpmrphwrmi
- starevelated depreciation and ization and-after ad ts for slidated partnerships and joint vensures, Management considers Funds frots Dperations an-appropriate —-
reastite of petformance of arni equity REIT bécause it is predzmted on cash flow. analysis. The Company computes Funds from Operations in accordance with standdrds estamel
———— by the White Paper which-may differ from the mwethodvlogy for calculating Funds from Operations utilized by other equity REITS and, accordingly, iay viot be cornparable 1o such
other REITs. Funds from Operations should not be considered as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP) as an indicator of the Company’s financial
performance or to cash flow from operating activities (détermined in accordance with GAAP) as a of the Company’s liquidity, nor is it indicative of funds avatlable te find
the Company’s cash needs, including its ability to make distributions. :
* As noted in footnote 1 above, Funds From Operations is a non-GAAP financial performance measure. A reconciliation of Funds From Operations with Net Income is provided in
lTtem 6 of the Company,s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 included with this summary annual report.
*Year 2000 includes a $.49 special dividend.




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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ur main focus in 2002
was strengthening our portfolio
and financial position. Through the
acquisition of a large portfolio of
medical office properties and the
lease-up of a recently completed
development project, Two Riverwood
Place, we added stability to our
portfolio. In addition, we strengthened
our financial position by locking in
low-cost, long-term financing, and
harvested profits from four property
sales. We also enhanced shareholder
value through the initiation of
monthly dividend payments.

This is not to presume that
everything was wonderful at Great
Lakes REIT in 2002. It wasn’t. We are
waging a continuing, uphill battle to
shore up portfolio occupancies in an
economy characterized by declining
employment and dramatically reduced
demand for office space. This is not a
challenge unique to Great Lakes REIT.
Almost every region of the country
and office property owner is affected.
The level of contraction we have
experienced is unprecedented. We
anticipate office markets will stabilize
at abnormally weak levels in 2003, with
a gradual recovery beginning in 2004.

Qur plan for combating weak
markets is to make our portfolio
more recession-resistant by acquiring
medical office properties. Medical
office buildings are not dependent
upon a strong economy. Their pertfor-
mance is more closely linked to the
health of their affiliated hospital
group. Seven of the eight medical
office buildings we recently acquired
are attached to hospitals operated by
Advocate Health Systems, the largest
health care provider in Illinois. Medical
office properties improve the stability
of portfolio occupancy (doctors rarely
move their offices), and enhance port-
folio returns. Other benefits due to the
low tenant turnover of these properties
are low tenant buildout and leasing

costs. Our objective is to identify and
acquire more medical office properties
with similarly strong hospital
affiliations in 2003 and beyond.

2002 HIGHLIGHTS

- Increased annualized dividend to
$1.62 per share and began making
monthly distributions ($0.135
per month).

+ Generated funds from operations
(FFO) of $35.4 million or $2.14
per share, down from last year’s
record levels of $37.3 million or
$2.24 per share.

« Strengthened our balance sheet by
closing a $165 million secured loan.
Of that amount, $75 million is at
fixed rates averaging 4.6% and the
balance is floating at no more than
1.6% over LIBOR. We financed our
$60 million medical office building
purchase with a 10-year, $40 million
loan at a 5.4% fixed rate.

- Provided a 14.2% total return to
shareholders, significantly outper-
forming the S&P 500 negative 23%
return and the NAREIT Composite
Index 3.6% return.

MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDINGS (MOB)
BUSINESS LINE ACQUIRED

A major accomplishment last year
was closing the largest acquisition in
our history, a medical office portfolio
purchased from Advocate Health
Systems. The portfolio consists of
eight buildings at six Chicago-area
locations. Seven of the eight
properties are adjacent to Advocate
hospitals and are collectively more
than 99% leased. Acquiring fully
leased properties enhances portfolio
occupancy, stability and cash flow.
Another benefit is new growth
potential; several of our hospital
campuses offer development
opportunities Great Lakes REIT
may explore in the future.



Third-party ownership of medical
office properties is increasingly
popular. Hospitals are selling office
buildings to raise capital and focus
resources on core aspects of their
business. While we plan to expand
our MOB business line, our approach
will be disciplined and our growth
controlled. Our first priority is
managing the Advocate portfolio well
and solidifying our reputation as a
strong partner in the MOB market.

$89 MILLION OF 2002 ACQUISITIONS
CLOSED; $32 MILLION IN DISPOSITIONS
Our acquisition strategy is
simple—acquire good quality but
underperforming office properties,
enhance their value through leasehold
improvements and effective manage-
ment, and sell when the time is right.
In addition to the Advocate portfolio,
we found two multi-tenant office
properties Jast year that fit our criteria:
1111 Touhy Avenue, Des Plaines,
Iinois. This building, currently 93%
leased, is adjacent to a property we
already owned, creating leasing and
property management efficiencies.
387 Shuman Boulevard, Naperville,
[llinois. This building’s largest
tenant, General Motors Corporation,
leases 60% of the space and is
committed through 2007.

We also harvested profits from
four non-core properties that were
no longer a strategic fit within our
portfolio. The combined sales price
was $34.1 million. Great Lakes REIT
realized sales gains totaling $7.8 million
on property sales. We sell properties
whose value in our view has been
maximized and recycle that capital into
more value-added opportunities.

As a result of these activities, our
portfolio is now concentrated 47%
in metropolitan Chicago, our largest
market, and the one we know best.
The addition of our medical office

business line improves the stability of
the portfolio and provides significant
new growth opportunities.

ADDRESSING LEASE ROLLOVER

We knew going into 2002 that demand

for office space would be weak, so we

stepped up our leasing efforts and
were successful in renewing or

releasing 796,000 square feet of 2002

rollover, at rents averaging 10.2%

higher than expiring leases. Despite

challenging market conditions, we
had some success stories:

- A large tenant at Two Riverwood
Drive had financial trouble and
could no longer make its lease
payments. We were able to almost
immediately re-lease its space and
additional footage as well to a
premier national tenant, Humana,
Inc., under a 10-year agreement.

In early 2003 we received a

major vote of confidence from
Metropolitan Life Insurance when
this tenant chose to renew its lease
at Kensington Corporate Center and
lease space in another Great Lakes
REIT property, Centennial Center.

2003 OUTLOOK

Our focus in the coming year is
maintaining occupancy levels and
further strengthening our portfolio.
Leasing will remain a challenge, but
we believe acquisition prospects will
improve for both the MOB and multi-
tenant office sectors. We believe there
will be ample opportunity in 2003 to
acquire quality properties at advanta-
geous prices.

As always, we are sincerely grateful
to our employees, business partners,
tenants and shareholders. You are
truly our most valuable assets. Thank
you for your continued interest in
Great Lakes REIT.

March 27, 2003

GREAT LAKES REIT

Aoe

Richard A. May
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

QW@M

Patrick R. Hunt
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF OPERATING
OFFICER




rreplacement value. With

'p ments,; we expect to

' generate a 13% return on our invest-

ment in our first year of ownership.
1111 East Touhy is a classic example of
an underperforming property offering
strong upside potential.
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GREAT LAKES REIT

stays focused

1111 EAsT TouHYy DEes PLAINES, ILLINOIS

hat we do best is acquire and turn around underperforming office properties.
We focus on properties that can be acquired at a discount to replacement value and that offer embedded growth
opportunities due to below-market rents. We make leasehold improvements to bring the newly acquired property
up to our high standards. We apply our skills in property management and leasing to increase rental outcome and
occupancy. One way we measure our success is growth in rental income. From 1997 through 2002 Great Lakes REIT
generated average net rent growth of 12% on lease rollovers.

A case study in how Great Lakes REIT turns around an underperforming property is provided by our

1111 East Touhy building. We acquired this property in August of 2002. Built in 1975, this is an older property that
was originally owned by an insurance company, and was allowed to slide. We plan to renovate 1111 Touhy and return
it to a higher standard. Even with renovation costs factored into the equation, the purchase price was attractive-
approximately $81 per square feet, which is only 60% of replacement cost. In addition, this property appealed to us
because of its reliable current income stream. The current income stream is expected to provide Great Lakes REIT a
13% cash-on-cash return in the first year of our ownership. The 1111 East Touhy property is 93% leased, with leases
for its largest tenants running through 2005. Another attraction was the potential for synergies and economies of
scale. This property is located directly adjacent to another Great Lakes REIT property. From one location, we can now
control the leasing of 300,000 square feet and manage both properties more efficiently.




Mepical OFsice BUILeING, CHRIST HosPITAL OAK LAwR, MANOIS — T o e

he medical office portfoho of Advoeﬁteﬂea}th Systems, the natmns thlrd iargest

integrated health care provider, presented Great Lakes REIT with a unique opportunity to acqulre properties that

would increase our cash flow and enhance the stability of our portfolio. Compared to traditional office space, ! R

office buildings offer ownership benefits such as consistently high demand and occupancy rates. These propertics
also somewhat recession-proof due to the nature of medical practices. Medica ofﬁce bmlémﬁ on hospltal campases
are especially sought after by physicians, who value the convenience and efficien

hospital. The incentive to renew leases is strong, and medical office p pmperhsare typ:caﬁy fuﬂy lased. 7
The Advocate portfolio consisted of eight medical office buildings at six different (E&cag&areaiacatmn&
We acquired the Advocate portfolio in October 2002 for $6(} mﬂilon,mr $131 per sqaare foot. The eight buildings are

'currgnﬁy%l%leasedandareexpeeted%&pfewde"' ial’

This is a new property type for Great Lakes REIT but nﬁtf()fﬁ&f management t&m,sevexai of ouFseRior T I

- executives have managed medical office portfolios in the past. This acquisition, the largest in Great Lakes REITs - -

_history, provides us with both visibility and momentum- mmm;gmmﬁmﬁtmﬂrm e —

existing portfolio.

2002 ANNUAL REPORT




Chicago, are located in Bariington,

Naperville, Downers Grove, Oak Lawn, "‘g‘\
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GREAT LAKES REIT

leads by example

387 SHUMAN BOULEVARD NAPERVILLE, {LLINOIS

eing acknowledged for enhancing tenant satisfaction and property value through
property management and leasing expertise is the sign of a great REIT. The favorable reputation Great Lakes REIT
enjoys as a property manager has enabled us to attract many top-tier and Fortune 500 companies as tenants—
Cingular Wireless, Humana, Met Life, Microsoft, Compagq, Cisco Systems—to name just a few.

The advantages of having top-tier corporations as tenants are numerous. There is less tenant defanit risk.
Opportunities are created to extend the tenant relationship to additional properties and/or multiple markets. Top-
tier tenants tend to attract other top-tier companies as tenants.

In 2002, we added General Motors Corporation to our tenant roster. General Motors Corporation is our
primary tenant at 387 Shuman Boulevard, a 112,309 square-foot property we acquired in October. General Motors
Corporation sold the property to us and remains in place as our tenant under a five-year lease that expires in 2007
and represents 60% of the building’s rentable space. This acquisition was attractive, not only because of its high-
quality tenant who would provide a secure income stream, but also because of its advantageous price. We acquired
the 387 Shuman Boulevard property for less than 60% of replacement cost and expect to generate a 12.4% return on
this property in our first year of ownership. The property is readily marketable to corporate tenants because of its
location, along suburban Chicago’s bustling East-West Tollway Corridor.




meets challenges

32255 NORTHWESTERN HicHwAY FARMINGTON HiLLs, MIcHIGAN

emand for office space has eroded in most markets and made re-tenanting
space when leases expire a challenge for all office REITs, including Great Lakes REIT. We are meeting this challenge
head-on by offering creative solutions to leasing issues, strengthening our relationships with our tenants, setting
monthly leasing goals and working closely with tenants to address concerns before problems arise. At the beginning
of 2002, we set a goal for monthly leasing activity, and we were successful in achieving that goal, with leasing activity
averaging 29,000 square feet per month.

The leasing solution we provided for one of our Tri-Atria tenants demonstrates how a creative approach can
turn a potential loss into a win/win scenario for both Great Lakes REIT and the tenant. Qur tenant, Ameritech, was
nearing the end of its lease-term and indicated its interest in renewing its lease but for a smaller amount of space. Qur
leasing team negotiated a new lease with Ameritech that accommodated its request for less space. At the same time,
the leasing team brought in a new tenant, Stout Risius Ross, Inc, a Detroit-based investment management firm, and
successfully negotiated a lease with this tenant for the space Ameritech planned to vacate. In this instance, Great Lakes
REIT was able to satisfy the leasing requirements of a Fortune 500 tenant, maintain an occupancy rate at 96% for the

Tri-Atria property and gain a high-quality local company as a new tenant.

2002 ANNUAL REPORT




GREAT LAKES REIT
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despite a weak Detroit:leasing. market.
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Great Lakes REIT acquired the 3400
Dundee Road property in 1993 for
$4.1 million or $54 per square foot.
In 2002 we sold this property for $8.2
million and booked a sizable gain on
the sales transaction.

2002 ANNUAL REPORT




recognizes value

3400 DunDeEE ROAD NORTHBRGOK, fLLINGIS

2 ecognizing the value of their properties and knowing when the time is right to sell
is what great REITS do. This is knowledge gained through years of property management experience and ongoing
communications with local real estate professionals. In assessing a value for each property, we consider first the
property’s projected future cash flows. This cash flow estimate is weighed against the property’s acquisition price to
calculate our return on investment. Finally, we compare the return on that property investment to returns available
from alternative properties or investments: We. create shareholder value by harvesting profits from fully valued
properties and reinvesting the proceeds in the acquisition of undervalued properties. Other factors that influence
our buy and sell decisions are opportunities to increase rental income and strategic fit of the property with the
overall portfolio.

In the case of our 3400 Dundee Road property, we determined there were minimal opportunities to increase
rental income and value since the property was already fully leased at market rates. Another consideration was its
location, away from major transportation routes and better suited to the needs of small business tenants with a local
customer base. Because of its location, the 3400 Dundee Road property was not an optimal fit with our portfolio
strategy, which focuses on corporate tenants. A decision was made to seek a buyer. In July 2002, we sold the 3400
Dundee Road property for $8.2 million, more than twice our purchase price, and booked a $4 million gain on the

sales transaction.

13
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o | gmwﬁl has been through acqulsltxons, but we wﬂi mvest in new develcpmer;t giiren the right opportumty -
: "Two Riverwood Place was the right opportunity. 1t was our second collaboration with Quadrangle Deve%op— Ry :
~ ment Corporation; who was also-our partner on One vaerwochlace.Quadmngitassumedaﬂ consn'ucnﬁnanck**" B

-~~~ Risk-sharingis 6ne réason We chose _toparucipat'ein t'heRive

T development risk; and succeeded in-delivering the project on time, on track and on budget. Our role was leésmg We T
- took title to Two Riverwood Place in early 2002 and are making steady progress. T‘heproperty‘:s a!reedy -84% leased, -
and we anticipate a stabilized yield exceeding 11.6%.

od Place projects. Another Eiﬂcauon ﬂrw

9épu1ar restaurants, hotels and ofher
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Two Riverwood is the result of a second
successful collaboration with our develop-

ment partner, Quadrangle Development
Corporation. We assumed title to Two
Riverwood in early 2002. This property is
already 84% leased and counts among its
tenants premier companies such as
Humana, Microsoft and Michael Best &
Friedrich, LLP, one of the Midwest's
largest and oldest law firms.

15




COMPLETE DISPOSITION ANALYSIS,

DECEMBER 31,

2002

PROPERTY ADDRESS SQUARE SALE HoLping GROsS Book NET Un-
FOOTAGE Date PErRIOD VALUE AT DIsPOSITION LEVERAGED

IN YEARS DisposiTioN™ Price™ IRR

SOUTHFIELD, MI 10 Oak Hollow 84,736 Oct. 96 1.3 $ 6,883 $ 9,026 36.4%
VERNON HirLs, IL 830 West End Court 26,909 Dec. 96 3.25 1,968 2,709 23.1%
BLOOMINGTON, MN Roadway Industrial 50,625 Feb. 98 5 1,458 1,312 11.3%
ELGIN, IL 1675 Holmes Rd and 116,286 May ’99 2.25 5,204 4,939 4.3%

MARKHAM, IL Court Office Center

DEs PrLaings, IL 2800 River Road 99,732 Jun.’ 99 4.4 5,483 7,526 22.3%
SCHAUMBURG, IL 1251 Plum Grove Road 43,338 Jun. 99 3.5 1,745 3,394 31.7%
VERNON HILLS, IL 565 Lakeview Parkway 84,808 Aug.’99 3.75 5,779 8,484 22.2%
DowNERS GROVE, IL Woodcreek T & 11 126,911 Apr. 00 3.5 9,815 12,033 17.9%
ENGLEWOOD, CO 183 Inverness Drive 183,895 Dec. 00 2.6 20,376 26,938 18.9%
Woob Datk, IL 160 Hansen Court 21,329 Apr.’02 8.3 1,312 2,216 27.1%
NORTHBROOK, IL 3400 Dundee 75,070 Jul.’02 8.8 5,028 7,658 15.5%
ANN ARBOR, MI Burlington Office Center 182,167 Aug.’02 3.3 21,009 21,939 11.29%
WooD DaLg, IL 180 Hansen Court 18,241 Nov. 02 8.8 888 1,640 10.8%
TOTALS/WEIGHTED AVERAGE” 1,114,047 3.7 $ 86,948 $109,814 27.8%

*  Weighted average holding period and IRRs are based on net disposition price.

** Dollars in thousands.

2002 ANNUAL REPORT




GREAT LAKES REIT

measures up

Creating shareholder value by harvesting profits from property sales and using the sale proceeds to acquire new
properties that offer better growth opportunities is what we do. We acquire underperforming properties selling at
a discount to replacement value, make improvements that increase rental income and occupancy and then sell the
property when we believe maximum value has been attained.

Great Lakes REIT’s expertise as a turnaround specialist is evidenced by our track record of exceptional
returns on property sales. Our cumulative gain on property sales exceeded $5.6 million in 2002, and our average
unleveraged internal rate of return on property sales was greater than 13%. In the last five years, our average
unleveraged rate of return on property sales has exceeded 27%. Our skill in extracting maximum value from
properties is one of the 1
reasons that Great Lakes
REIT’s return on
investment (ROI) has
consistently ranked among
the highest in the office
REIT sector.

RRiA S ek = o RN

Medical Offree Buitdinigs [ and 20Goed Savwaitan D lospaial Downers Grove, Hlinois




PROPERTIES IN PORTFOLIO, DECEMBER 31, 2002
STATE PROPERTY ADDRESS SQUARE YEaR BuiLt/ CURRENT ToTaL CURRENT ANNUAL
FOOTAGE RENOVATED OccUPANCY®  INVESTMENT IN  NET OPERATING
REAL ESTATE™™  INCOME BEFORE
DEPRECIATIONT"
COLORADO ENGLEWOOD 116 Inverness Drive East 205,716 1984 85.2% $ 22,293 $ 2,976
ILLINOIS ARLINGTON HEIGHTS 601 Campus Drive 96,219 1987 37.3% 3,464 259
3455, 3550, 3555 Salt Creek Lane 98,232 1984 71.2% 5,996 388
BANNOCKBURN 3000 Lakeside Drive 202,218 1999 83.4% 32,054 2,806
DEs PLAINES 1011 East Touhy Avenue 153,777  1978/1995 81.5% 8,121 1,298
1111 East Touhy Avenue™” 148,444 1975 94.2% 10,197 655
LINCOLNSHIRE Two Marriott Drive 41,500 1985 100.0% 3,102 421
Liste 3030 Warrenville Road 150,036 1988 60.2% 19,358 1,101
MoOUNT PrROSPECT 1660 Feehanville Drive 86,107 1989 100.0% 6,077 1,012
NAPERVILLE 387 Shuman Boulevard™* 112,309 1981 84.4% 7,871 202
NORTHFIELD 191 Waukegan Road 62,081 1983 85.1% 5,872 461
Oak Brook 823 Commerce Drive 44,814  1969/1996 100.0% 4,113 439
ROLLING MEADOWS 1600 Golf Road 252,476 1986 82.2% 26,754 2,600
SCHAUMBURG 1900 East Golf Road 266,910  1980/1993 80.4% 27,163 3,027
1750 East Golf Road 212,212 1985 54.8% 20,764 2,404
1910-1920 Thoreau Drive 109,392 1986 79.8% 10,130 846
VERNON HIiLLS 175 East Hawthorn Parkway 84,566 1987 93.6% 7,232 997
Woob DaLE 165, 175, 185 Hansen Court 74,371 1986 62.2% 3,768 587
MICHIGAN ANN ARBOR 777 Eisenhower Parkway 281,134 1975 99.5% 24,448 3,660
FARMINGTON HILLS 32255 Northwestern Highway 236,369 1986 96.0% 27,957 3,020
SOUTHFIELD 24800 Denso Drive 79,290 1987 91.3% 6,315 1,024
40 Oak Hollow 81,088 1989 52.2% 7,795 1,147
Troy 1301 West Long Lake Road 170,438 1988 84.5% 17,722 2,269
MINNESOTA ~ MINNEAPOLIS 2221 University Avenue SE 97,614  1979/1997 83.4% 9,207 644
ST. PauL 2550 University Avenue West 320,806  1916/1985 80.8% 27,017 3,731

2002 ANNUAL REPORT



GREAT LAKES REIT

6.0 million square feet

STATE PROPERTY ADDRESS SQUARE YEar BuiLt/ CURRENT ToTal CURRENT ANNUAL
FOOTAGE RENQVATED OCCUPANCY™  INVESTMENT IN  NET OPERATING
REAL ESTATE™  INCOME BEFORE
DEPRECIATIONT™

OHIO CINCINNATI 30 Merchant Street 95,910 1988 100.0% $ 6,349 $ 1,324
CoLumaus 175 South Third Street 197,870 1981 86.8% 23,164 2,278
DUBLIN 4860-5000 Blazer Memorial Parkway 124,929 1986 75.4% 9,098 927
425 Metro Place North 101,592 1982 70.8% 8,022 716
655 Metro Place South 215,676 1986 87.5% 21,228 2,120
WISCONSIN BROOKFIELD 375 Bishop’s Way 53,747 1987 74.3% 5,546 525
150, 175, 250 North Patrick Boulevard 116,155 1987 62.2% 7,953 604
MILWAUKEE 111 East Kilbourn Avenue 373,489 1988 97.3% 49,044 6,191
11925 West Lake Park Drive 36,037 1989 79.3% 2,435 281
11270 West Park Place 198,042 1984 56.4% 18,400 793
PEWAUKEE One Riverwood Place 97,778 1999 94.9% 10,309 1,488
Two Riverwood Place™™ 98,607 2001 83.6% 10,707 8,230

WEST ALLIS 2514 South 102nd Street and
10150 West National Avenue 120,988  1984-1987 87.9% 8,986 998

Medical

ILLiNOIS BARRINGTON 27790 West Highway 227~ 48,373 1979-1983 100.0% 7,159 159
27750 West Highway 227" 44,528 1996 100.0% 6,543 167
CHICAGO 2315 East 93rd Street™” 50,834 1971-1985 98.5% 4,423 106
DownNERS GROVE 3825 Highland Avenue™* 80,593 1976 100.0% 8,196 165
3825 Highland Avenue™” 76,384 1995 100.0% 13,568 323
HazeL CREST 17850 South Kedzie Avenue** 50,491 1989 100.0% 3,481 77
NAPERVILLE 1020 East Ogden Avenue*™” 49,422 1989 94.1% 8,230 193
Oax LAWN 4440 West 95th Street™” 57,531 1986 100.0% 8,276 196

Economic occupancy as of January 1, 2003.
“* Dollars in thousands.
*** Acquired in 2002.

f  Net operating income for the 12 months ended December 31, 2002, or for the period of ownership in 2002 if acquired in 2002.
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PART I

ITEM 1—BUSINESS
General

Great Lakes REIT, a Maryland real estate investment trust that is the successor to a business that
was organized and began operations in 1992 (the “Company”), is a fully integrated, self-administered
and self-managed real estate company. As of December 31, 2002, the Company owned and operated 46
properties (the “Properties”} in the Chicago, Milwaukee, Detroit, Columbus, Minneapolis, Denver and
Cincinnati areas (the “Current Markets”). The Properties contain approximately 6.0 million rentable
square feet leased to more than 650 tenants with a weighted average occupancy rate of approximately
83% as of January 1, 2003. The Company has elected to be treated for federal income tax purposes as
a real estate investment trust (“REIT”). The Company conducts substantially all of its operations
through Great Lakes REIT, L.P. (the “Operating Partnership”), of which the Company is the sole
general partner. All references to the “Company,” “we,” “our” or “us” in this Form 10-K include the
Company and the Operating Partnership unless the context otherwise requires.

Business Strategy

The Company’s primary business strategy is to acquire, own and operate well-located, under-
performing suburban and medical office properties generally located in certain of the Current Markets
at attractive yields and to increase cash flow and property value by implementing a comprehensive
operating strategy. The Company’s operating strategy includes: (i) investment in value-enhancing
renovation and refurbishment programs; (ii) aggressive leasing efforts; (iii) reduction and containment
of operating costs; and (iv) a strong emphasis on tenant services and satisfaction. The Company seeks
to establish itself as one of the suburban and medical office property owner/operators of choice in the
markets it serves and to maximize tenant retention.

The Company also intends to pursue limited new property development opportunities that are
otherwise consistent with the Company’s overall business strategy. In January 2002, the Company
acquired a 98,607 square foot office building in suburban Milwaukee that was completed in June 2001.
The Company had contracted to acquire this property in 2000 before the start of its construction. The
Company also intends to enhance its leasing flexibility by offering build-to-suit development options to
current and prospective tenants who require space that is otherwise unavailable in a particular market.
In addition, the Company will continue to pursue the redevelopment of older properties in attractive
locations.

The Company continues to evaluate acquisition opportunities in certain urban and central business
district areas in the Current Markets as well as medical office properties in other markets. In the event
an appropriate acquisition opportunity is identified that is consistent with the other elements of the
Company’s primary business strategy, the Company may acquire properties located in select urban or
central business district areas or medical office properties in other markets.

The Company will continue to engage in strategic dispositions of select properties. The Company
typically seeks to dispose of properties when one or more of the following cenditions is present:
(i) market prices are at or near replacement cost; (ii) property occupancy is high and there is limited
potential to increase cash flow and property value within a reasonable period; (iii) the Company
believes that its capital can be re-deployed to investment properties with higher long-term returns; and
(iv) ownership of the Property is no longer consistent with the Company’s business strategy. The
Company sold four properties in 2002 aggregating 295,000 square feet resulting in net sales proceeds of
$33.1 million. It also sold two properties in 2000 aggregating 310,000 square feet resulting in net sales
proceeds of $39.6 million in 2000. The Company has identified certain assets that it expects will be sold
during 2003 and may consider selling additional properties if market conditions warrant. The Company



has not entered into any definitive agreements with respect to any such disposition opportunities and
there can be no assurances that the Company will consummate any such dispositions. In addition, over
the next several years, the Company expects to exit certain Current Markets where it does not have a
significant presence.

Financing Strategy

The Company seeks to maintain a well-balanced, conservative and flexible capital structure by:
(i) currently targeting a ratio of long-term debt to total market capitalization in the range of 40% to
60%; (ii) extending and sequencing the maturity dates of its debt; (iii) focusing on borrowing at fixed
rates; (iv) pursuing debt financings and refinancing on a secured basis; and (v) maintaining relatively
conservative debt service and fixed charge coverage ratios. In 2002, the Company refinanced its
unsecured credit facility with a long-term secured loan. The Company expects that future financings will
be secured by its properties. The Company’s ratio of long-term debt to total market capitalization may
increase as a result of using secured debt in place of unsecured debt. In addition, as discussed under
Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” the
Company has approximately $50 million of borrowing capacity under two secured loans that it may use
for short-term funding of the acquisition of additional properties and for working capital requirements.
The Company’s debt to total market capitalization ratio (total market capitalization is defined as the
total market value of all outstanding Common and Preferred Shares and units of limited partnership
interest in the Operating Partnership plus outstanding indebtedness) at December 31, 2002 was 50.1%.

Competition

All of the Properties are located in competitive markets. The properties with which the Company
competes for tenants are generally owned by institutional investors, other REITs or local real estate
operators, however, no single competitor or small group of competitors is dominant in any of the
Current Markets. In addition, the Company may be competing with other owners and operators that
have greater financial resources and more experience than the Company. An increase in the supply and
a decrease in the demand for rental properties with characteristics similar to those of the Properties
may adversely affect rental rates or the Company’s ability to lease space at the Properties or any newly
acquired properties. During 2002, vacancy rates in the Current Markets trended upward due to both
increases in the supply and decreases in demand for office space within the Current Markets. The
Company currently expects that such vacancy rate increases will affect the ability of all property owners
within the Current Markets, including the Company, to increase rental revenues until such time as
vacancy rates begin to trend downward.

Insurance

The Company carries comprehensive liability, casualty, pollution, extended coverage and rental loss
insurance covering all of the Properties, with policy specifications and insured limits that the Company
believes are adequate and appropriate under the circumstances. There is, in 2003, no exclusion in the
Company’s casualty insurance policy for damage caused by acts of terrorism. There are, however,
certain types of losses that are not generally insured because they are either uninsurable or not
economically feasible to insure. Should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, the
Company could lose its capital invested in any of the Properties, as well as the anticipated future
revenues from such Property and, in the case of recourse debt, the Company would remain obligated
for any mortgage debt or other financial obligations related to such Property. Any such loss would
adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operations of the Company. Moreover,
as the general partner of the Operating Partnership, the Company will generally be liable for any of the
Operating Partnership’s unsatisfied obligations other than non-recourse obligations. The Company




believes that the Properties are adequately insured; however, no assurance can be given that material
losses in excess of insurance proceeds will not occur in the future.

Environmental Regulations

Under various federal, state and local environmental laws, ordinances and regulations, a current or
previous owner or operator of real estate may be required to investigate and clean up hazardous or
toxic substances or petroleum product releases at such property and may be held liable to a
governmental entity or to third parties for property damage and for investigation and clean-up costs
incurred by such parties in connection with the contamination. Such laws typically impose clean-up
responsibility and liability without regard to whether the owner knew of or caused the presence of the
contaminants, and the liability under such laws has been interpreted to be joint and several unless the
harm is divisible and there is a reasonable basis for allocation of responsibility. The costs of
investigation, remediation or removal of such substances may be substantial, and the presence of such
substances, or the failure to properly remediate the contamination on such property, may adversely
affect the owner’s ability to sell or rent such property or to borrow using such property as collateral.
Persons who arrange for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic substances at a disposal or
treatment facility also may be liable for the costs. of removal or remediation of a release of hazardous
or toxic substances at such disposal or treatment facility, whether or not such facility is owned or
operated by such person. In addition, some environmental laws create a lien on the contaminated site
in favor of the government for damages and costs incurred in connection with the contamination.
Finally, the owner of a site may be subject to common law claims by third parties based on damages
and costs resulting from environmental contamination emanating from such site. Some or all of these
costs may not be covered by pollution insurance.

During the last seven years, independent environmental consultants have conducted or updated
Phase I Environmental Assessments (“Phase I Assessments™) at each of the Properties. In addition, a
limited-scope Phase II Assessment (“Phase IT Assessment”) has been conducted at the University
Office Plaza property (the Phase I Assessments and the Phase 1I Assessment are collectively referred to
as the “Environmental Assessments”). The Phase I Assessments have included, among other things, a
visual inspection of the Properties and the surrounding area and a review of relevant state, federal and
historical documents. Except for the Phase II Assessment and certain limited sampling in connection
with underground tank and/or piping removals at the Arlington Ridge Service Center and One Park
Plaza properties, no invasive techniques such as soil or groundwater sampling were performed at any of
the Properties. The Company’s Environmental Assessments of the Properties have not revealed any
condition giving rise to an environmental liability that the Company believes would have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, assets or results of operations, taken as a whole, nor is the
Company otherwise aware of any such condition. There can be no assurance, however, that the
Company’s Environmental Assessments would reveal all conditions giving rise to environmental
liabilities. Moreover, there can be no assurance that (i) future laws, ordinances or regulations will not
impose any material environmental liability or (ii) the current environmental condition of the
Properties will not be affected by tenants, by the condition of land or operations in the vicinity of the
Properties (such as the presence of underground storage tanks), or by third parties unrelated to the
Company.

Other Matters

The Company’s operations are not materially dependent on a single or few customers; no single
customer accounts for more than 5% of the Company’s total revenue. The Company’s operations are
not subject to significant seasonal fluctuations. As of December 31, 2002, the Company employed 113
persons, none of whom is represented by a collective bargaining unit.




For additional information about the Company’s investments and operations, see item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and
Item &, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” For additional information about the
Company’s business segments, see Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Available Information

The Company files annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Investors can read and copy any materials the Company
files with the Securities and Exchange Commission at its Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street,
N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Investors can obtain information about the operations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission Public Reference Room by calling the Securities and Exchange Commission
at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Securities and Exchange Commission also maintains a Web site that contains
information the Company files electronically with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which you
can access over the Internet at http://www:sec.gov.

The Company also makes its annual report on From 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 available, free of charge, on its Web site as soon
as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities
and Exchange Commission. The Company’s Web site address is http://www.greatlakesreit.com.

ITEM Z—PROPERTIES

General

As of December 31, 2002, the Company owned 46 properties containing approximately 6.0 million
square feet. The Properties consist primarily of Class A and Class B suburban office and medical office
properties, which range in size from approximately 36,000 to 375,000 rentable square feet. The
Properties consist of 32 suburban office properties, 8 medical office properties, two central business
district office buildings, and 4 office/service centers (generally single-story buildings with both finished
office and unfinished storage area). The 46 Properties are located primarily in the suburban areas of
Chicago (25), Milwaukee (8), Minneapolis (2), Detroit (5), Columbus (4), Denver (1) and
Cincinnati (1). Many of the Properties offer amenities, including indoor and outdoor parking, loading
dock facilities, on-site property management, in-house conference facilities and providers of food and
beverage service.

Management believes that the location and quality of construction of the Properties, as well as the
Company’s reputation for providing superior tenant service, enable the Company to attract and retain a
diverse tenant base. As of December 31, 2002, the Properties were leased to more than 650 tenants, no
single tenant accounted for more than 3.01% of the aggregate annualized base rent of the Company’s
portfolio and only 15 tenants individually represented more than 1% of such aggregate annualized base
rent.




The following sets forth information regarding the Company’s leases with its largest tenants based
upon annualized base rent as of January 1, 2003:

Remaining Annualized

Percentage of
Aggregate Aggregate

Percentage of

Number  Lease  Gross Rents  Portfolio Rentable Aggregate
of Term in (000s Annualized Square Leased
Tenant Leases Months(l) omitted) Gross Rent Feet Square Feet
ABN AMRO Mortgage Group, Inc. . .. 1 18 $ 3,074 3.01% 126,419 2.56%
BNY Clearing Services, LLC ........ 1 8 2,829 2.77% 99,163 2.00%
The Medstat Group . ... ........... 1 71 2,110 206% 116,007 2.34%
Advocate Health and Hospitals :

Corporation . . ................. 8 64 1,917 1.88% 131,347 2.65%
United HealthCare Services of ’

Minnesota Inc. . . ............... 1 54 1,829 1.79% 65,212 1.32%
UOPLIC...................... 1 36 1,658 1.62% 75,045 1.51%
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company . 1 67 1,641 1.61% 85,487 1.72%
Community Insurance Company . ... .. 1 11 1,641 1.61% 77,206 1.56%
Ernst & Young LLP. . ............. 1 11 1,579 1.54% 58,859 1.19%
Legion Insurance Company ......... 1 38 1,566 1.53% 58,642 1.18%
General Motors Corporation . ....... 1 58 1,407 1.38% 66,020 1.33%
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith,

Inc. ... . 3 46 1,233 1.21% 59,742 1.21%
PrairiecComm Inc. ................ 1 36 1,170 1.14% 42,824 0.86%
Crawford & Company ............. 2 63 1,146 1.12% 43,333 0.87%
GE Capital .................. ... 1 95 1,078 1.05% 41,123 0.83%
Total/Weighted Average ............ 25 44 $25,878 25.32% 1,146,429 23.13%

(1) Weighted average calculation based on aggregate leased square footage for each tenant.

The following table sets forth certain of the information as of January 1, 2003 regarding the

Properties.
Company Land

Ownership Ownership Year  Date  Areain Square Occupancy Encumbrance
Property location Property Type Interest % Built Acquired Acres footage 1/1/03 (000’s omitted)
SUBURBAN CHICAGO
1900 East Golf Rd.
Schaumburg, IL . . . .. .. ... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1980 Dec-96 129 266,910 80.4% 4)
1600 Golf Rd.
Rolling Meadows, IL . . . . . .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1986 Mar-01 6.0 252,476 82.2% $16,335
1750 East Golf Rd. )
Schaumburg, IL . . . ... .. .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1985  Sep-97 7.7 212,212 54.83% (3]
3000 Lakeside Dr. ’
Bannockburn, IL . . .. ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1997 Aug-01 151 202,218 83.4% 4).
1011 East Touhy Ave.
Des Plaines, IL . . . ... .. .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1978 Dec-93 5.3 153,777 81.5% (1)
3030 Warrenville Rd. )
Liste, IL .. .. ........ .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1988 Sep98 158 150,036 60.2% (€3]
1920 & 1930 Thoreau Dr.
Schaumburg, IL . . . ... .. .. Single-story Office Fee 100% 1986  Aug-00 8.7 109,392 79.8% $ 6,095
1660 Feehanville Dr.
Mount Prospect, IL . . . . .. .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1989 Aug-95 73 86,107 100.0% (4)
175 E. Hawthorn Pkwy.
Vernon Hills, TL.. . . . ... ... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1987 Sep-94 4.6 84,566 93.6% (1)
191 Waukegan Rd.
Northfield, IL . . . .. ... ... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1983 Sep-98 35 62,081 85.1% 4)
823 Commerce Dr.
Oak Brook, IL ... .. ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1969 Nov-95 2.6 44814  100.0% 4)
387 Shuman Boulevard
Naperville, IL . . . ... ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1982 Oct-02 8.4 112,309 84.4% 48]




Company Land
Ownership Ownership Year Date Areain Square Occupancy Encumbrance
Property location Property Type Interest % Built Acquired Acres footage 1/1/03 (000’s omitted)

1111 East Touhy Avenue

Des Plaines, IL Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1975 Aug-02 5.5 148,444 94.2% 4)

Two Marriott Dr.

Lincolnshire, IL Single story Office Fee 100% 1985  Jul-96 34 41,500  100.0% 1)

165, 175 and 185 Hansen Ct.

Wood Dale, IL Single story Office/ 100% 1986 Jan-94  10.6 74,371 62.2% 4)
Office service

3455, 3550,

3555 Salt Creek Creek Ln.

Arlington Heights, IL Single story Office/ X 98,232
Office service

601 Campus Dr.

Arlington Heights, IL Single story Office/ X 96,219 (1)
Office service

Good Shepherd POB I

27790 West Highway 22

Barrington, IL Medical office building 100.0% (5)

Good Shepherd POB II
27750 West Highway 22
Barrington, IL Medical office building 44,528  100.0% (5)
1020 E. Ogden Avenue
Naperville, IL Medical office building 2.5 49,422 94.1% (5)
Good Samaritan POB 1
3825 Highland Avenue
Downers Grove, IL Medical office building 0.5(2) 80,593  100.0% (5)

Good Samaritan POB 11
3825 Highland Avenue

Downers Grove, IL . . ., .. .. Medical office building 2) 100% 1995 Oct-02 0.5(2) 76,384 100.0% (5)
4400 West 95" Street
Oak Lawn, IL . . . ... ... .. Medical office building (2) 100% 1986 Oct-02 1.2(2) 57531  100.0% (5)
2301/2315 East 93 Street
Chicago, IL . . . ... ... ... Medical office building 2) 100% 1971/ Oct-02 0.5(2) 50834 98.5% 5)
1981/
1985

17850 S. Kedzie Avenue
Hazel Crest, IL 60429 . . .. .. Medical office building (2) 100% 1989 Oct-02 04(2) 50,491 99.5% (5)

MILWAUKEE AND SUBURBS
111 East Kilbourn Ave.

Milwaukee, WI .. ... ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1988 Apr-98 0.6 373,489 97.3% $32,611
11270 W. Park Place

Milwaukee, WE . . ... ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1984 Sep-95 7.9 198,042 56.4% (1)
11925 W. Lake Park Drive

Milwaukee, WI . . ... ... .. Single story office Fee 100% 1989 Jun-93 3.4 36,037 79.3% (1)

2514 S. 102nd St. &
10150 W, National Ave.

West Allis, WL. .. ........ Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1987 Nov-96 6.8 120,988 87.9% 1)
150, 175, 250 Patrick Blvd.
Brookfield, WI . . ... ... .. Single story Office/ Fee 100% 1987 Jun-94 120 116,155 62.2% 4)

Office service
N17W24222 Riverwood Dr.

Pewaukee, WI . .. ... ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1999 Dec-99 8.8 97,778 94.9% “)

375 Bishop’s Way

Brookfield, W1 . . ... ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1987 Apr-97 41 53,747 74.3% ()]

N19W24133 Riverwood Dr.

Pewaukee, WI . . . ... ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 2001 Jan-02 7.8 98,607 83.6% )

SUBURBAN MINNEAPOLIS /

ST. PAUL

2550 University Ave. W

St.Paul, MN. .. ... ...... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1916 Dec-96/ 44 320,806 80.8% “)
Jul-98

2221 University Ave. SE

Minneapolis, MN . . . . ... .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1979 May-95 2.8 97,614 83.4% $ 3,620

SUBURBAN DETROIT

777 East Eisenhower Pkwy.

Ann Arbor, MI . . .. ... ... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1975 Dec-97 236 281,134 99.5% 4)

32255 Northwestern Hwy.

Farmington Hills, MI . . . . . .. Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1986 Dec-97 129 236,369 96.0% 4)

1301 W. Long Lake Rd.

Troy, MI . ... ... ....... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1988 Nov-96 11.5 170,438 84.5% 1)




Company Land
Ownership Ownership Year  Date  Area in Square Occupancy Encumbrance

Property location Property Type Interest %o Built Acquired Acres footage 1/1/03 (000’s omitted)
No. 40 Oak Hollow

Southfield, MI . . .. .. .. ... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1989 Dec-96 5.7 81,088 52.2% (1)
24800 Denso Dr.

Southfield, MI. . . .. ... ... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1987 Aug-95 105 79,290 91.3% 1)

SUBURBAN COLUMBUS
635 Metro Place South

Dublin, OH . ........ ... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1986 Sep-97 15.0 215,676 87.5% —_
175 South Third St.

Columbus, OH . ......... Multi-story Office (3) 100% 1981  Jan-98 0.5(3) 197,870 86.8% —
425 Metro Place North

Dublin, OH .. .......... Muiti-story Office Fee 100% 1982  Sep-97 6.3 101,592 70.8% —_
4860-5000 Blazer Mem. Pkwy.

Dublin, OH . ........... Single story Office/ Fee 100% 1986 Sep-96  13.7 124,929 78.4% —

Office service

SUBURBAN CINCINNATI
30 Merchant St.

Springdale, OH ... ... .... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1988 Apr-96 5.9 95910  100.0%

SUBURBAN DENVER

116 Inverness Dr. East

Englewood, CO . . . ... . ... Multi-story Office Fee 100% 1984 May-98 7.4 205,716 85.2% $11,410

Totals . .. ... ... ... ... 5,957,095 83.2%

Footnotes: (dollars in thousands)
(1) These properties are pledged as collateral for a mortgage loan with an outstanding balance of $66,849 at December 31, 2002.
{(2) The land beneath these properties is subject to ground leases that expire September 30, 2077 with annual rental payments of $199.

(3) The land beneath this property is subject to a ground lease expiring November 30, 2044 with one 15-year extension option. Annual rental
payments are $50.

(4) These properties are pledged as collateral for a mortgage loan with an outstanding balance of $141,750 at December 31, 2002.

(5) These properties are pledged as collateral for a mortgage loan with an outstanding balance of $36,000 at December 31, 2002.

Leases

4)

The Company’s leases are structured for terms that range from one to 15 years. These leases are a
mixture of net leases (where tenants pay their pro rata share of real estate tax and operating expenses),
and gross leases (under which tenants typically pay for all real estate tax and operating expenses above

those for an established base year or agreed expense floor). Leases on a significant portion of the
rentable square feet in the Company’s portfolio are net leases that were in existence upon the
Company’s acquisition of the Properties. However, whether structured as net leases or gross leases,
virtually all leases entered into by the Company require tenants to reimburse the Company for the
tenant’s pro-rata share of real estate tax and operating expense increases. The Company is generally
responsible for structural repairs.

Leases often contain provisions permitting tenants to renew at prevailing market rates. Certain
leases contain provisions, which permit the tenant to terminate its lease upon written notice to the
Company, subject to the tenant’s obligation to pay a termination penalty. Such termination penalties
are generally negotiated with a tenant when a lease is executed and are usually calculated to
compensate the Company for unamortized tenant improvements and leasing commissions at the
termination date, and, in certain instances, for rent on the space for a period of months after the
termination date.



Lease Distributions. The following table sets forth information relating to thé distribution of the
Company’s leases based on rentable square feet under lease, as of January 1, 2003.

Percentage Percentage
Of Aggregate Annualized Of Aggregate
. Portfolio Leased Base Rent Portfolio Annualized

Square Feet Under Lease Square Feet (000’s omitted) Base Rent
2,500 0T eSS . v v oot e 820%  $ 6,966 8.43%
2,501 -5000 ...... .. . e 12.53% $10,891 13.17%
5001-7500 ... ... e 8.34% $ 6,619 8.01%
7,501 -10,000 . ... .. 5.72% $ 4,247 5.14%
10,001 - 20,000. . . ... it e 15.75% $12,429 - 15.03%
20,001 -40,000. ....... .. 18.59% $15,217 18.41%
40,001 + .. e e 30.87% $26,302 31.81%
Totals .. ... . i e e 100.00% $82,671 100.00%

Lease Expirations—Portfolio Total. The following table sets forth a summary schedule of the lease
expirations for leases on the Properties in place as of January 1, 2003, assuming that none of the
tenants exercises renewal options or termination rights, if any, at or prior to the scheduled expirations.

Square Percentage of Annualized Base
Footage Total Leased Rent of Expiring Percentage of
of Expiring Square Leases (000’s omitted) Total Annualized

Year of Lease Expiration Leases Footage At Expiration Base Rent
2003 ... 988,696 20.33% $18,886 22.84%
2004 . ... 815,573 16.77% 14,689 17.77%
2005 ... .. 841,450 17.30% 14,297 17.29%
2006 . ... e e 591,576 12.16% 9,727 11.77%
2007 . e 765,967 15.75% 11,703 14.15%
2008 . .. 469,886 9.66% 7,332 8.87%
2009 . ... . 121,912 2.51% 1,660 2.01%
2010 . ..o 139,716 2.87% 2,428 2.94%
2011 . . 30,002 0.62% 601 0.73%
2012 . . 78,709 1.62% 1,152 1.39%
2017 .. 20,116 0.41% 196 0.24%
Totals .. ....... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 4,863,603 160.90% $82,671 100.860%

The following table combines certain historical information regarding tenants at the Properties who
renewed an existing lease at or prior to the expiration of the existing lease:

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Aggregate rentable square footage of expiring
leases(1) ...... O 703,759 611,274 836,284 864,843 1,235,729
Aggregate rentable square footage of lease
renewals. ... ... 410,752 422,940 492,569 485,177 650,449
Percentage of expiring rentable square footage
renewed .. ... 58% 69% 59% 56% 53%

(1) The aggregate rentable square footage of expiring leases excludes those leases for tenants that
vacated subsequent to the Company’s acquisition of a property where the Company believes the
decision to vacate was made prior to the Company’s acquisition of the property.

10



ITEM 3—LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As of December 31, 2002, the Company was not a party to, and none of its properties is subject
to, any material legal proceedings.
ITEM 4—SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002.
ITEM 4A—EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The Company’s executive officers are elected annually and, subject to the terms of any applicable
employment agreements, serve at the pleasure of the Company’s Board of Trustees. The following table
sets forth certain information with respect to the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Present Position and Offices With the Company

Richard A.May ................ gg Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of
Trustees

Patrick R. Hunt ................ 49 Presideﬂt, Chief Operating Officer and Trustee

Richard L. Rasley. .............. 46 | Executive Vice President, Secretary and Co-General
Counsel

James Hicks . . ................. 47  Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Raymond M. Braun ............. 43 Chief Investment Officer

KimS. Mills. ......... PR 54 Senior Vice President—Leasing

Edith M. Scurto .. .............. 37 Senior Vice President—Medical Office Properties

Richard A. May. Mr. May co-founded the Company in 1992 and has served as principal executive
officer and as Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Company since its inception. Mr. May is
currently the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In 1986, Mr. May
co-founded Equity Partners Ltd. (“Equity Partners”). Equity Partners provided advisory services to the
Company from 1992 until April 1, 1996, when Equity Partners merged with and into the Company.

Mr. May was an officer and shareholder of Equity Partners from 1986 until the 1996 merger. Mr. May
is a licensed real estate broker in the States of Illinois and Indiana and holds several inactive National
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (“NASD”) licenses. He is also a member of National Association
of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”). Mr. May received his Bachelor’s Degree in mechanical
engineering from the University of Illinois and his M.B.A. degree from The University of Chicago.

Patrick R. Hunt. Mr. Hunt, President, Chief Operating Officer and Trustee, joined the Company
in August 1997 and has served in such capacities since that time, with general supervisory responsibility
for the Company’s operating activities. From 1983 until August 1997, Mr. Hunt was employed by Jones
Lang LaSalle {(formerly LaSalle Partners), a Chicago-based provider of international real estate
services. At Jones Lang LaSalle, Mr. Hunt most recently served as a managing director of portfolio
management and client servicing of Jones Lang LaSalle’s commingled fund investments. Prior to that,
he served as Administrative Head of Jones Lang LaSalle’s Los Angeles corporate office. From 1975 to
1983, Mr. Hunt was employed by Harris Trust and Savings Bank in Chicago, where he served as a Vice
President in the Corporate Banking Department. Mr. Hunt is a member of the Pension Real Estate
Association and NAREIT. He received his Bachelor’s Degree from Northwestern University and his
M.B.A. degree from The University of Chicago.
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Richard L. Rasley. Mr. Rasley co-founded the Company in 1992 and has served as an executive

officer of the Company since its inception. Mr. Rasley is currently the Executive Vice President,
Secretary and Co-General Counsel of the Company and has served in such capacities since the
April 1996 merger with Equity Partners, with general supervisory responsibility for administrative and
legal matters. From 1987 until April 1, 1996, Mr. Rasley was an officer and shareholder of Equity
Partners. Mr. Rasley is a Certified Public Accountant, holds several inactive NASD licenses, and is a
member of the Hllinois Bar and NAREIT. Mr. Rasley received his Bachelor’s Degree from the
University of Iowa and his M.B.A. and J.D. degrees from the University of Iilinois.

James Hicks. Mr. Hicks, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company, joined Equity
Partners in 1994 and currently has general supervisory responsibility for the finance and accounting
activities of the Company. Mr. Hicks has served as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the
Company since the April 1996 merger with Equity Partners. From 1989 to 1993, Mr. Hicks was
employed by JMB Institutional Realty Corporation, which was a real estate adviser to pension funds
and other institutional investors, as a vice president of portfolio management with responsibility for
overall asset management of a portfolio of international and domestic commercial real estate
properties. He received his Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and Mathematics from Augustana College
and his M.B.A. degree from Northwestern University. Mr. Hicks is a Certified Public Accountant and is
a member of the Illinois CPA Society and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Raymend M. Braun. Mr. Braun, Chief Investment Officer, joined Equity Partners in May 1990
and currently has primary responsibility for all of the Company’s real estate acquisition activities.
Mr. Braun has served in such capacity since the April 1996 merger with Equity Partners. Prior to
joining Equity Partners, Mr. Braun was employed from 1986 to 1990 by The Balcor Company, a major
real estate investment company involved in all aspects of real estate including development,
management, syndication and mortgage lending. Mr. Braun received his Bachelor’s Degree from the
University of Hlinois. Mr. Braun is a member of the National Association of Industrial and Office Park
Realtors.

Kim S. Mills. Mr. Mills, Senior Vice President-Leasing, joined Equity Partners in January 1996.
Mr. Mills has primary responsibility for all of the Company’s leasing activities. Mr. Mills has served as
an executive officer of the Company in his present capacity since the April 1996 merger with Equity
Partners. Prior to joining Equity Partners, Mr. Mills was employed by Simon Property Group REIT, a
commercial property REIT, from 1992 to 1995 as a regional manager with responsibility for overall
portfolio management of high rise office buildings totaling over four million square feet. Mr. Mills
received his Bachelor’s Degree from Ohio Northern University and has a Real Property Administrator
designation from the Building Owners and Managers Association.

Edith M. Scurto. Ms. Scurto, Senior Vice President-Medical Office Properties, joined Equity
Partners in December 1986. In August 1987, she assumed responsibility for the Advisor’s property
management activities. Ms. Scurto became an executive officer of the Company in December 1997,
serving as Senior Vice President—Property Management until October 2002 and in her present capacity
since that time as discussed below. Until October 2002, she managed or oversaw the management of all
of Equity Partners’ and the Company’s properties, and was involved with virtually every aspect of
property management, reporting, improvement and maintenance. In October 2002, Ms. Scurto assumed
responsibility for general business management and operations of the Company’s medical office
properties. Ms. Scurto is a current member of the Institute of Real Estate Management, maintains an
Illinois Real Estate Sales Person License and is a Certified Property Manager.
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PART I

ITEM 5—MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS

The Company’s common shares of beneficial interest (the “Common Shares™) are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol “GL.”

As of March 5, 2003, there were approximately 477 holders of record of the Common Shares,
which excludes beneficial owners of shares registered in nominee or street name.

The table below sets forth for the periods indicated, the reported high and low sale prices of the
Common Shares on the NYSE Composite Tape and the quarterly dividends per share paid by the
Company on such shares. The Company commenced paying dividends monthly in August 2002.
Included in the fourth quarter dividend per share is the December 2002 dividend of $.135 per share
that was paid in January 2003.

&0_2 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 2001 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q

High .......... $17.70 $18.98 $18.80 $17.75 High ......... $18.31 $18.30 $18.58 $17.00
Low........... $15.48 $15.90 $15.60 $15.68 Low.......... $15.81 $16.70 $15.30 $14.89
Dividend ....... $ 40 8% 40 % 405 § 405 Dividend ...... $ 408 408 408 40

The Company has elected to be treated as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the
applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In order to qualify as a
REIT, the Company is required to distribute to shareholders at least 90% of its taxable income and to
meet certain asset and income tests as well as certain other requirements. The Company’s distribution
strategy is to distribute what it believes is a conservative percentage of its cash flow, permitting the
Company to retain funds for capital improvements and other investments while funding its
distributions.

For federal income tax purposes, distributions may consist of ordinary income dividends,
nontaxable return of capital, capital gains or a combination thereof. Distributions in excess of the
Company’s current and accumulated earnings and profits (calculated for tax purposes) will constitute a
nontaxable return of capital rather than a dividend and will reduce the shareholder’s basis in his or her
Common Shares for tax purposes. To the extent that a distribution exceeds both the Company’s current
and accumulated earnings and profits and the shareholder’s basis in his or her shares, the amount of
such excess will generally be treated as gain from the sale or exchange of that shareholder’s shares. The
Company annually notifies shareholders of the taxability of distributions paid during the preceding year.
The following table sets forth the taxability of distributions paid in 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2000 2000

Ordinary INCOME « « + + v+ v oo e 981% 100% 66.0%
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gains . .. ................... — — 4.7%
20% rate capital gains . . . .. ... ... 19% —  293%

100% 100%  100%
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Equity Compensation Plar Information

The flowing table provides information as of December 31, 2002 with respect to the Company’s
Common Shares that may be issued under existing equity compensation plans:

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance
Number of securities to be  Weighted average exercise  under equity compensation plans
issued upon exercise of - price of outstanding (exciuding securities reflected in
Plan Category outstanding options(1) options(1) column (a))

(a) (b) (©

Equity compensation: plans

approved by security ‘

holders 1,261,248 $16.32 931,340
Equity compensation plans

not approved by security

holders N/A N/A N/A

(1) The amounts in columns (a) and (b) of the above table exclude 166,664 outstanding Common
Shares (all of which are restricted and subject to vesting requirements) that were granted under
the 1997 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan.

ITEM 6—SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following sets forth selected financial and operating information for the Company for each of
the periods and dates indicated. The following information should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements and notes thereto of the Company included elsewhere in this report. The selected
historical financial and operating information for the Company at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 has been derived from the Company’s
financial statements audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, whose report with respect
thereto is included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The selected financial and operating information for
the Company at December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 and for the years ended December 31, 1999 and
1998 has been derived from the Company’s audited financial statements.
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Operating Data:
Total revenue . ......... ... .. .. ...
Expenses: : :
Real estate taxes and other property
operating . .. ............... e
General and administrative ............
Interest. . ...
Depreciation and amortization . .........
Income before gain on sale of properties and
allocation to minority interests . . . .. I
Gain on sale of properties, net ...........
Discontinued operations, net (including gain
on sale of properties of $7,789 in 2002) ...
Netincome .........................
Income allocated to preferred shareholders . .
Net income applicable to common shares . . . .
Per Common Share Data:
Net income:
Basic ........ ... .. i
Diluted.............. ... ...
Dividends . .. ........ .. ... ... . ...,
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic ......... ... L
Diluted . . ........... . .
Balance Sheet Data (at December 31):
Properties, net of accumulated depreciation . .
Total @ssets. .. ... ..
Totaldebt................ ... ... ....
Total liabilities ... ....................
Shareholders’ equity . ..................
Other data:
Cash flows provided by operating activities . . .
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing
activities . . ..., . L
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing
activities . ... ... .. L L
Funds from operations (unaudited)(1) . ... ..
Number of properties owned at year end
(unaudited) .. ....... ... ... L
Total square feet of properties owned at year
end (unaudited). ........ ... ... ...
Occupancy rate of properties owned at year
end (unaudited). . ....... ... ... ... ...

. Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
$101,409 $ 96,133 $ 92,657 $ 89,043 $ 76,770
43075 38696 36182 37351 31,759
5,241 4,992 5,555 4,692 4,958
15422 14,192 15008 13,841 12,152
19,913 18369 15819 14,981 12,552
17,758 19,884 20,093 18,178 15349
— — 11,134 8,048 —
8,759 1,788 3,044 2,442 1,508
26452 21,620 34,189 28,598 16,796
3,656 3,656 3,656 3,656 163
$ 22,796 $ 17,964 $ 30,533 $ 24942 § 16,633
$ 139 $§ 109 $ 18 § 151 $ 099
$ 138 § 108 $ 18 $ 151 $ 098
$ 161 $ 160 $ 191 $ 134 § 124
16372 16520 16531 16471 16,793
16522 16655 16631 16554 16,974
$516,877 $465,746 $414,002 $438,177 $ 426,862
548981 486,492 431,610 455202 443,689
314,670 257,078 190,911 211,663 193,623
341,482 277,916 211,858 234317 213437
206,822 207,894 219,073 219,934 229,087
$ 40211 § 40,118 $ 35543 $ 36,124 § 30332
(69,321)  (69,093) 20,483  (18,961) (139,052)
31,275 31,08  (56,759) (18,111) 109,749
35400 37271 35808 32,178 29,054
46 37 35 36 40
5,957 5,428 4,971 5165 - 5232
83% 88% 92% 94% 95%

(1) The White Paper on Funds From Operations approved by the Board of Governors of the National
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) in April 2002 (the “White Paper”)
defines Funds from Operations as net income (loss) (computed in accordance with GAAP),
excluding gains (or losses) from debt restructuring and sales of property, plus real estate related
depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint

15



ventures. Management considers Funds from Operations an appropriate measure of performance
of an equity REIT because it is predicated on cash flow analysis. The Company computes Funds
from Operations in accordance with standards established by the White Paper which may differ
from the methodology for calculating Funds from Operations utilized by other equity REITS and,
accordingly, may not be comparable to such other REITs. Funds from Operations should not be
considered as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP) as an indicator
of the Company’s financial performance or to cash flow from operating activities (determined in
accordance with GAAP) as a measure of the Company’s liquidity, nor is it indicative of funds
available to fund the Company’s cash needs, including its ability to make distributions.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

Although not a GAAP measure, the Company believes that the inclusion of information regarding
funds from operations (FFQ) provides valuable information to shareholders and potential investors.
The GAAP measure, net income applicable to common shares, includes depreciation and amortization
expenses, gains or losses on property sales and minority interests. In presenting FFO, the Company
eliminates substantially all of these items in order to provide an indication of the results from the
Company’s property operations. FFO is a widely recognized measure in the Company’s business and is
presented by nearly all publicly traded REITs. The Company’s calculation of FFO may differ from the
methodology for calculating FFO utilized by other real estate companies.

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Net income applicable to common shares . ....... $22,796 $17,964 $ 30,533 $24,942 $16,633
Adjustments to calculate funds from operations:
Gain in sale of properties ... ................ (7,789) —  (11,134) (8,048) —
Minority interests . .......... ... 65 52 82 98 61
Adjusted depreciation and amortization(a) . ... ... 20,328 19,255 16,327 15,186 12,360
Funds from operations. . .. .................. $35,400 $37,271 $ 35,808 $32,178 $29,054

Weighted average common shares outstanding-
diluted ...... . .. . 16,522 - 16,655 16,631 16,554 16,974

(a) Adjusted depreciation and amortization is calculated as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Depreciation and amortization in consolidated
statements of cash flows . .................. $21,077 $19,852 $16,975 $15901 $13,092
Less depreciation and amortization unrelated to
PIOPEIties . o v\ v v v it e e - 749 597 648 715 732
Adjusted depreciation and amortization . . ........ $20,328 $19,255 $16,327 $15,186 $12,360
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ITEM 7—MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Dollars in thousands)

Results of Operations
Trends

In 2002, occupancy rates in the Current Markets declined due to increases in supply and decreases
in demand for office space. The market trend of occupancy declines has impacted the Company’s
portfolio performance and, as a result, the overall portfolio occupancy of the Company’s properties
declined to 83% at the end of 2002 as compared to 88% at the end of 2001. During 2002, the
Company averaged approximately 30,000 square feet of new leasing activity per month. The Company
believes that the trend of vacancy increases is slowing, but the Company anticipates that the difficult
leasing environment that currently exists in its markets will persist throughout 2003 as improvement in
demand for office space usually lags the beginning of an economic recovery. As of January 1, 2003, the
Comparny had 989,000 square feet of leases expiring in 2003, or 16.6% of the portfolio. The Company
currently expects to retain or renew 250,000 to 350,000 square feet of the 989,000 square feet of leases
expiring during 2003. The Company anticipates it will again average 30,000 per month of new leasing
activity in 2003, basically the same level as was experienced in the very difficult environment of 2002.
Based on the tenant retention and new leasing activity expectations noted above, the Company expects
that average portfolio occupancy during 2003 will be in the range of 79% to 80%. Occupancy at
January 1, 2004 is expected to be in the range of 76% to 78% assuming no significant tenant defaults
occur during the year. Based on these occupancy expectations, the Company expects that revenues and
net income will decline in 2003 as compared to 2002.

As of March 1, 2003, several tenants were in default under their leases for failure to make rent
payments. Several other tenants that are not currently in default are experiencing financial difficulties
which may lead to lease defaults. These tenant defaults may adversely impact the Company’s revenue
in 2003.

Legion Insurance Company, which leases 58,000 square feet of space at Milwaukee Center and
represented 1.53% of the Company’s aggregate portfolio annualized base rent as of December 31, 2002,
was placed in rehabilitation by the Pennsylvania Department of Insurance on April 1, 2002. After
completing its review, the Pennsylvania Department of Insurance has recommended to the
Commonwealth Court that Legion Insurance Company be liguidated. The Commonwealth Court has
not yet approved the recommendation of the Pennsylvania Department of Insurance. Based on
currently available information, the Company believes it is more likely than not that Legion will fulfill
all terms of its lease in 2003. As of March 1, 2003, Legion Insurance Company was current on its rental
payments.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. We believe our most critical accounting policies and estimates
include allowance for doubtful accounts, revenue recognition regarding reimbursement income,
estimation of accrued real estate taxes, fair value of interest rate swap agreements, impairment and
disposal of long-lived assets, including goodwill, accounting for employee share options and restricted
shares, and depreciation and amortization, each of which we discuss below.

Allowance for doubtful accounts—methodology

We evaluate whether accounts receivable from tenants, including straight-line rents, are collectible
using the specific identification method. In circumstances where a specific tenant has defaulted on its
financial obligations to us, we record a specific reserve for bad debts against amounts due to reduce the
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net recognized receivable to the amount we think will be collected. If a tenant’s circumstances change
(an unexpected material adverse change in a tenant’s financial condition that precludes them from
meeting their financial obligations), our estimates of the recoverability of amounts due us could be
reduced by a material amount.

Revenue recognition—reimbursement income

Under the terms of our tenant leases, tenants pay a portion of the real estate taxes and property
operating expenses of the property they occupy to us as reimbursement income. Tenants generally pay

an estimate of these amounts to us monthly. As of December 31 of each year, we record as a
receivable or payable the difference between the computed reimbursement income and the monthly
estimates paid to us by the tenant even though the amount receivable or payable will not be billed or
credited to the tenant until the next calendar year. Such amounts recorded do vary from the actual
amounts billed to the tenants but the differences in prior years have not been material.

Accrued real estate taxes—use of estimates

For certain properties owned by us, real estate taxes for the current calendar year are not due and
payable until the next calendar year. We estimate the amounts due the local taxing authorities based on
historical trends for a particular property or local area. We also use information from real estate tax
consultants who review for the Company the methodology used by the local taxing authorities to
determine valuation of our properties and the tax rates used to determine the real estate taxes we owe.
If a local taxing authority were to change the methodology it uses to determine real estate taxes, the
amounts estimated tc be paid in future years could vary from our estimates.

Fair value of interest rate swap agreements

We value these agreements based on information provided to us by a third party. Such valuations
are based on various factors, including current market conditions, assumptions regarding forward yield
curves and other matters. Changes in such factors could significantly affect the fair value of our interest
rate swap agreements.

Impairment and disposal of long-lived assets, including goodwill

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2002. This standard
stipulates that amortization of goodwill will not be recorded subsequent to adoption and instead
periodic evaluation of impairment will be required.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted this standard
effective January 1, 2002. This standard stipulates that operating results, including gain or loss on sale,
of all properties sold, or designated as held for sale, subsequent to the effective date will be reported
as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

The Company periodically evaluates its long-lived assets, including its real estate properties and
goodwill, for impairment indicators. The judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators
are based on factors such as operational performance, market conditions and legal factors. Future
events may occur that would cause the Company to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that
an impairment loss is warranted.
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Accounting for employee share options and restricted shares

The Company uses the intrinsic value method permitted by Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25), in accounting for its options on
common shares. Under APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized because the exercise price of
the Company’s employee share options equals or exceeds the market price of the underlying shares at
the date of grant. Net income and earnings per share would vary from amounts reported if we followed
FASB Statement 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and accounted for our employee
share options under the fair value method of that Statement.

Depreciation and amortization policy

Depreciation of buildings is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, generally 40 years. Depreciation of tenant improvements is computed using the
straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or useful life. Deferred leasing commissions are
amortized over the lease term. The Company estimates the useful life of its assets based upon market
conditions, economic and physical obsolescence factors and other items. A change in any of these
factors may cause the Company to revise the estimated useful life of its assets. Future unanticipated
tenant defaults and bankrupicies may cause the Company to shorten the depreciation period for tenant
improvements and the amortization period for deferred leasing commissions with a resulting increase in
depreciation or amortization expense.

2002 Compared to 2001

During 2002, the Company acquired 11 properties. The operating results of these properties were
included in the Company’s financial statements from the dates of acquisition. In addition, the Company
sold 4 properties in 2002. In 2001, the Company acquired two properties, and in 2002 a full year of
operations of these properties were included in the Company’s financial statements. In analyzing the
2002 operating results of the Company, the changes in rental and reimbursement income, real estate
taxes and other property operating expenses from 2001 were principally due to: (i) the addition of
operating results from the properties acquired in 2002 from the dates of acquisition, (ii) the addition of
a full year’s operating results in 2002 of the properties acquired in 2001 compared to the partial year’s
operating results from the dates of acquisition in 2001, and (iii) increases or decreases on properties
owned in both 2002 and 2001. Other property operating expenses include contract services, repairs,
maintenance, utilities, personnel, insurance and other costs directly associated with the leasing,
management and operation of the properties. Insurance costs in 2002 increased as compared to 2001.
Insurance costs are expected to increase in 2003 although such increases are partially recovered from
tenants through the expense reimbursement clauses in their leases. A summary of these changes as they
impact rental income, reimbursement income, real estate taxes and other property operating expenses
for 2002 follows: '

Rental Reimbursement Real Estate Other Property

Income Income Taxes Operating Expenses
Increase due to 2002 acquisitions . ......... . $4,751 § 724 $ 775 $1,725
Increase due to inclusion of full year of
properties acquired in 2001 . ......... ... 2,258 1,287 643 1,244
Increase (decrease) in 2002 compared to 2001 . (2,806) (970) (150) 142
Total. . ..o $ 4,203 $1,041 $1,268 $3,111

Telecommunications income decreased by $276, or 61%, in 2002 to $176 as compared to $452 in
2001 as certain telecommunications providers that leased roof top space from the Company exited this
business in 2001.
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Tenant service income decreased by $31, or 8%, to $383 in 2002 as compared to $414 in 2001
commensurate with the decline in occupancy in the Company’s portfolio of properties in 2002.

Interest income decreased by $213, or 14%, to $1,319 in 2002 as compared to $1,532 in 2001
principally because employees repaid amounts due under the employee loan program reducing the
amount upon which the Company could earn interest income.

General and administrative expenses increased by $249, or 5%, to $5,241 in 2002 as compared to
$4,992 in 2001 primarily due to certain one-time state and local income taxes ($177) incurred in 2002
and increased insurance costs ($72) in 2002 as compared to 2001.

Interest expense increased by $1,230, or 9%, to $15,422 in 2002 as compared to $14,192 in 2001
due to increased amounts of long-term debt outstanding in 2002 as compared to 2001, partially offset
by lower interest rates on variable rate debt in 2002 as compared to 2001.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $1,544, or 8%, to $19,913 in 2002 compared
to $18,369 in 2001 as the weighted-average gross book value of properties depreciated was greater in
2002 than in 2001.

2001 Compared to 2000

During 2001, the Company acquired two properties. The operating results of these properties were
included in the Company’s financial statements from the dates of acquisition. In 2000, the Company
acquired one property, and in 2001 a full year of operations of this property was included in the
Company’s financial statements. In analyzing the 2001 operating results of the Company, the changes in
rental and reimbursement income, real estate taxes and other property operating expenses from 2000
were principally due to: (i) the addition of operating results from the properties acquired in 2001 from
the dates of acquisition, (ii) the addition of a full year’s operating results in 2001 of the property
acquired in 2000 compared to the partial year’s operating results from the date of its acquisition in
2000, and (iii) increases or decreases on properties owned in both 2001 and 2000. Other property
operating expenses include contract services, repairs, maintenance, utilities, personnel, insurance and
other costs directly associated with the leasing, management and operation of the properties. A
summary of these changes as they impact rental income, reimbursement income, real estate taxes and
other property operating expenses for 2001 follows:

Rental Reimbursement  Real Estate QOther Property
Income Income Taxes Cperating Expenses
Increase due to 2001 acquisitions . .......... $ 3,486 $ 2,372 $1,264 $ 1,601
Increase due to inclusion of full year of
property acquired in 2000. .............. 815 688 503 298
Increase (decrease) in 2001 compared to 2000 .  (1,208) (2,692) 352 (1,504)
Total. . ... $ 3,093 $ 368 $2,119 $ 395

Telecommunications income increased by $41, or 10%, in 2001 to $452 as compared to $411 in
2000 as the Company signed additional rooftop license agreements in 2001. The impact of the income
generated by the additional agreements was partially offset by the bankruptcies of two companies in
2001 that had signed rooftop license agreements in 2000 and prior.

Tenant service income increased by $40, or 11%, to $414 in 2001 as compared to $374 in 2000
commensurate with the increase in the number of properties owned by the Company.

Interest income decreased by $202, or 12%, to $1,532 in 2001 as compared to $1,734 in 2000
principally because the Company did not have any disposition proceeds from property sales in 2001
available to earn interest pending reinvestment in other properties or distribution to shareholders.
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General and administrative expenses decreased by $563, or 10%, to $4,992‘in 2001 as compared to
$5,555 in 2000 primarily due to reduced expenses associated with the accelerated vesting of shares
granted under the restricted share plan ($239) and decreased incentive compensation expenses ($324)
in 2001.

Interest expense decreased by $816, or 5%, to $14,192 in 2001 as compared to $15,008 in 2000 due
to lower average interest rates on the Company’s unsecured line of credit during 2001.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $2,550, or 16%, to $18,369 in 2001 compared
to $15,819 in 2000 as the weighted-average gross book value of properties depreciated was greater in
2001 than in 2000. The Company acquired properties for a contract price of $56,759 in 2001 as
compared to acquisitions totaling $9,490 in 2000.

Segment Operations

The Company has three reportable segments, distingnished by property type. The property types
are office, office service center and medical office properties. Office buildings are generally single-story
or multi-story buildings used by tenants for office activities. The buildings generally have common area
lobbies and other amenities including food service areas, atriums and limited underground parking
facilities. Office service center buildings generally are one-story buildings with no common areas.
Tenant spaces generally have less than 100% office use with the non-office space used for showroom,
technical or light storage purposes. Medical office properties are generally connected to or located near
hospitals, and the tenants in those properties are health-care providers.

Interest expense incurred by the Company is a combination of property specific long-term debt
and long-term debt that is secured by properties across the Company’s reportable segments. Interest
expense incurred on property-specific debt is allocated to that property’s segment. Interest expense
incurred on long-term debt that is secured by properties across the Company’s reportable segments is
allocated to the reportable segments based on the square footage of properties in that segment that are
associated with the long-term debt.

The net income for the office segment was as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Net operating income . ..................... $ 52,829 $ 53,094 §$ 54,004
Interest expense . .......... ... ..., (14,246) (13,381) (13,881)
Depreciation . . ...... ... i (17,449) (16,390) (14,247)
Segment net inCOME ... ......vvvvvnrnnne.... $ 21,134 $ 23323 §$ 25876

The decrease in segment net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 2001
resulted from declining occupancy in this property segment partially offset by increases due to
properties acquired in 2002 and inclusion of a full year of operations in 2002 of properties acquired in
2001. The decrease in segment net income for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to 2000
resulted from declining occupancy in this property segment partially offset by increases due to
properties acquired in 2001 and inclusion of a full year of operations in 2001 of properties acquired in
2000.
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The net income for the office service center segment was as follows:
Years ended December 31,
2002 2601 2008

Net operating income $2269 §$2985 § 3,838
Interest expense (854) (811) (1,127)
Depreciation (1,037) (1,406) (1,024)

Segment net income $ 378 $ 768 $ 1,707

The decrease in segment net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 2001
resulted from declining occupancy in this property segment. The decrease in segment net income for
the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to 2000 resulted from declining occupancy in this
property segment.

The net income for the medical office segment was as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Net operating inCome . . .. ... ..., $1,285 — —
Interestexpense . . ........ ... . i (322) — —
Depreciation .. ....... ... .. . . (507) — —
Segment netincome . . . ........... ... ... $ 456 — —

The increase in segment net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 resulted from the
acquisition of the medical office properties on October 1, 2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company expects to meet its short-term liquidity requirements principally through its working
capital and net cash provided by operating activities. The Company considers its cash provided by
operating activities to be adequate to meet operating requirements and to fund the payment of
dividends to the extent necessary to comply with certain federal income tax requirements applicable to
real estate investment trusts (“REITS”).

The Board of Trustees determines the Company’s dividend policy. The Board of Trustees has
indicated that it expects to maintain the current level of common share monthly dividends ($.135 per
share) and preferred share quarterly dividends ($.609375 per share) through 2003. The payment of
dividends, other than those declared to date, is subject to future action of the Board of Trustees and
will depend upon several factors including but not limited to the Company’s cash position, operating
results and general financial condition.

The Company expects to meet its liquidity requirements for property acquisitions and significant
capital improvements through targeted property dispositions and additional borrowings. The Company
has approximately $50,000 of additional borrowing capacity through two secured credit facilities,
including the $29,200 secured credit facility described below. Declining occupancies in the Company’s
properties expected in 2003 may cause the Company to limit future acquisition activity funded by
long-term borrowings to maintain liquidity for future significant capital improvements, tenant
improvements and other leasing costs and working capital. The Company expects to invest
approximately $2,000 for certain improvements at its property located at 1111 Touhy Avenue, Des
Plaines, Illinois over the next several years. While the Company expects to complete these
improvements in 2003 and 2004, the Company does have the option of limiting or curtailing these
improvements as conditions warrant.
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The Company sold its property located at 160 Hansen Court, Wood Dale, [linois, on April 22,
2002 for a contract price of $2,322, resulting in a gain on sale of $1,132.

The Company sold its property located at 3400 Dundee Road, Northbrook, Illinois, on July 1, 2002
for a contract price of $8,175, resulting in a gain on sale of $3,835.

The Company sold its property located at 305, 315 and 325 Eisenhower Parkway, Ann Arbor,
Michigan, on August 30, 2002 for a contract price of $21,800, resulting in a gain on sale of $2,216.

The Company sold its property located at 180 Hansen Court, Wood Dale, Illinois, on
November 22, 2002 for a contract price of $1,755, resulting in a gain on sale of $606.

On August 1, 2002, the Company acquired 1111 Touhy Avenue, Des Plames Tllinois, a 148,444
square foot office building, for a contract price of $10,050. Funds for the purchase came from the sale
of 160 Hansen Court and additional long-term borrowings.

On October 1, 2002, the Company acquired eight medical office buildings in metropolitan Chicago
totaling 459,000 square feet for a contract price of $59,561. In connection with this acquisition, the
Company entered into a one-year mortgage loan in an amount of $36,000. Funds for this acquisition
came from the sale of the Ann Arbor properties and the $36,000 loan described above. On January 16,
2003, the Company entered into a 10-year mortgage loan in an amount of $40,000. This loan accrues
interest at 5.43% per annum payable monthly along with monthly principal payments based on a
30-year amortization schedule. The proceeds of the 10-year mortgage loan were used to repay the
$36,000 loan described above and for working capital.

On October 15, 2002, the Company acquired 387 Shuman Boulevard, Naperville, Illinois, a 112,309
square foot office building, for a contract price of $7,820. Funds for the purchase came from additional
long-term borrowings.

On December 10, 2002, the Company completed a mortgage financing transaction with an
institutional lender (the “ING loan”). The ING Loan has four tranches, designated as Notes A, B, C
and D. The Company borrowed $141,750 at the closing of the ING Loan, representing the full
principal balance under Notes A, B and C and a portion of the amount available under Note D, as
described below. The proceeds from the ING Loan closing were used primarily to repay the
outstanding balance under the Company’s unsecured credit facility.

Note A has a principal sum of $35,000, a fixed interest rate of 4.3% and an expected maturity date
of January 1, 2008. Note B has a principal sum of $40,000, a fixed interest rate of 4.77% and an
expected maturity date of January 1, 2010. Note C has a principal sum of $50,000, a floating interest
rate of LIBOR plus 1.35%, which rate adjusts on a monthly basis, and an expected maturity date of
February 1, 2008. Notes A, B and C provide for pr1n01pal amortization over a 25-year period until the
expected maturity date.

The fourth tranche of the ING Loan, designated as Note D, is a revolving line of credit until 2008
as described below. The maximum principal amount available under Note D is $40,000 and bears
interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 1.60%, which rate adjusts on a monthly basis. Annual principal
pay-downs of $1 are required on the balance outstanding under Note D until January 1, 2008, at which
time any amounts outstanding are expected to be due. At December 31, 2002, $16,750 was outstanding
under Note D.

On March 24, 2003, the Company entered into a $29,200 secured credit facility. This facility has a
term of three years, bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.45%, and is secured by the Company’s properties
located in Columbus and Dublin, Ohio. There are no amounts outstanding under this facility as of
March 24, 2003. Future borrowings under this loan are available to fund acquisitions, significant capital
improvements, tenant improvements, leasing costs and working capital.
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The Company expects to meet its long-term liquidity requirements (such as scheduled mortgage
debt maturities, property acquisitions, and significant capital improvements) through long-term
collateralized and uncollateralized borrowings, the issuance of debt or equity securities and targeted
property dispositions.

Statements of Cash Flows

2002 Compared to 2001

Cash provided by operating activities increased by $93 as compared to 2001 as the cash flow from
operations generated by properties acquired in 2002 subsequent to the dates of their acquisitions offset
declines in cash flow from operations that resulted from occupancy declines in properties owned
throughout 2002 and 2001.

Net cash used in investing activities increased by $228 as compared to 2001 as Company acquired
11 properties in 2002 at a cost of $86,361 and generated $33,052 of disposition proceeds in 2002 from
the sale of four properties in 2002 compared to the acquisition of two properties in 2001 at a cost of
$56,759 and no property dispositions in 2001.

Net cash provided by financing activities increased by $189 as compared to 2001 as the Company’s
financing activities in 2002 were similar to 2001 in that the Company incurred additional indebtedness
in both years to finance its net acquisition activity.

2001 Compared to 2000

Cash provided by operating activities increased by $4,575 as compared to 2000 because the
Company acquired two properties during 2001 aggregating 452,000 square feet that offset the impact of
declining occupancy on cash flow from operations.

Net cash used in investing activities increased by $89,576 as compared to 2000 as Company
acquired two properties in 2001 at a cost of $56,759 and did not sell any properties in 2001 compared
to the acquisition of one property in 2000 at a cost of $9,490 and the sale of two properties in 2000
that generated disposition proceeds of $39,620.

Net cash provided by financing activities increased by $87,845 as compared to 2000 as the
Company increased its long-term debt outstanding to finance the acquisition of properties in 2001.

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve risks and uncertainties. The statements
included in this annual report on Form 10-K regarding dividend policy, anticipated results for future
periods, the expectations regarding future property dispositions and acquisitions, future portfolio
occupancy rates, the Company’s expectation for portfolio leasing, expectations regarding local real
estate market developments and the economic characteristics of the markets in which the Company
operates, are “forward-looking statements” made in reliance on the safe harbor provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Though these statements are based on risks,
assumptions and other factors that management believes to be reasonable, actual results may differ
from those expected or implied by the “forward-looking statements.” Key factors that may cause actual
results to differ from projected results include changes in: interest rates; conditions in the financial
markets generally and the market for real estate finance specifically; local and/or national economic
conditions; the pace of office space development and sub-lease availability; tenant office space demand;
the financial position of the Company’s tenants, including changes that may lead to increases in tenant
defaults; actual tenant default rates compared to anticipated default rates; and other risks inherent in
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the real estate business. For further information, reference should be made to the other reports and
information that the Company has filed and may file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 7A—QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
(Dollars in thousands)

The Company’s interest income is sensitive to changes in the general levels of U.S. short-term
interest rates.

The Company’s interest expense is sensitive to changes in the general level of U.S. short-term and
long-term interest rates as the Company has outstanding indebtedness at fixed and variable rates. A
change in variable interest rates of 1% per annum would increase or decrease the Company’s interest
expense by $204 per annum based on the amount of variable rate debt outstanding at December 31,
2002 ($20,370).

The Company’s debt under Note C of the ING loan bears interest at a variable rate of LIBOR
plus 1.35%. In 2001, the Company entered into two separate interest rate swap agreements with
notional amounts of $25,000 each. One agreement effectively fixes the interest rate on $25,000 of
Note C at a maximum of 4.27% until December 2003. The second swap agreement effectively fixes the
interest rate on $25,000 of Note C at a maximum of 4.88% per annum until December 2004.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $258,300 of fixed rate debt outstanding at an average
rate of 5.81% (including the effect of the two swap agreements). The Company has long-term debt
outstanding at fixed rates in the range of 4.3% to 7.44%. The general level of interest rates in the
United States as of March 1, 2003 is such that refinancing this debt at current rates would be unlikely
due to prepayment restrictions and penalties on its fixed rate debt. If the general level of interest rates
in the United States were to fall further, the Company would not likely have the opportunity to
refinance this fixed rate debt at lower interest rates due to prepayment restrictions and penalties on its
fixed rate debt.

In general, the Company believes long-term fixed rate debt is preferable as a financing vehicle for
its operations due to the long-term fixed contractual rental income the Company receives from its
tenants. As a result, the Company has 82% of its long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2002 at
fixed rates (including the debt affected by the swap agreements). The Company may, as market
conditions warrant, enter into additional fixed rate long-term debt instruments on either a secured or
unsecured basis.
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A tabular presentation of interest rate sensitivity is as follows:

Imterest Rate Sensitivity
Principal Amount by Expected Maturity
Average Interest Rate

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter

Liabilities:
Fixed Rate
Mortgage loans payable ................... $ 5,261 $5,594 $5,949 $26,060 $15,817 $149,619
Average interestrate .. ................... 6.15% 6.16% 6.17% 654% 6.74% 595%
Fixed Rate
Note C subject to interest rate swap expiring in
December 2003(1) . .................... $ 611 % 730§ 749 8 770 § 791 § 21,349
Note C subject to interest rate swap expiring in
December 2004(2) ........ ... . ... ... .. $ 6118 7308 749§ 770 § 791 § 21,349
Variable Rate
Note D ... e $ 1s 1§ 1% 18 1§ 16,745
Average interest rate(3) .. ... .. ... ...
Bank loan payable .. ..................... $36,000 — — — — —
Average interest rate(4) .. ......... .. ... ...
Bondspayable ... ....................... $ 3758 415 % 460 § 5058 560 $ 1,305

Average interest rate(5) . ......... ... ......

(1) The maximum interest rate is 4.27% per annum until December 2003. The average rate during
2002 was 4.27%.

(2) The maximum interest rate is 4.88% per annum until December 2004. The average interest rate
during 2002 was 4.88%.

(3) At December 31, 2002, the interest rate was LIBOR plus 1.6% per annum. The average interest
rate during 2002 was 3.04% per annum.

(4) The interest rate at December 31, 2002, was LIBOR plus 1.85%. The average interest rate during
2002 was 3.58%.

(5) The interest rate is reset weekly. Including credit enhancement costs, the average interest rate
during 2002 was 3.75% per annum.

ITEM 8—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements and supplementary data required by Regulation S-X are included in this
Report on Form 10-K commencing on Page F-1.

ITEM $—CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART I
ITEM 1¢—TRUSTEES AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding trustees of the Company will be set forth under the caption “Election of
Trustees” in the Company’s proxy statement for the Company’s 2003 annual meeting of shareholders
(the “Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated herein by reference. Information regarding executive
officers of the Company is included in Item 4A of Part I of this Form 10-K as permitted by Instruction
3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K. Information required by Item 405 of Regulation S-K will be set
forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11—EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this item will be set forth under the caption “Executive Compensation” in
the Proxy Statement and, except for the information under the captions “Executive Compensation-
Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation” and “Executive Compensation-
Performance Graph,” is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12—SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information required by this item will be set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 13—CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information regarding any disclosable relationships and related transactions of trustees and
executive officers will be set forth under the caption “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation” in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14—CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains a set of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. Within the 90-day period
prior to the filing of this report, an evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO”), of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures.
Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures are effective.

Subsequent to the date of their most recent evaluation, there have been no significant changes in
the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls.
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ITEM 15—EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.

(a) 1. See Index to Financial Statements.

2. See Index to Financial Statements.

All other schedules are not submitted because the required criteria have not been met, or because
the required information is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

3.1 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of the Company (incorporated by reference to
Appendix B to the Proxy Statement/Prospectus that is part of the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4, as amended (File No. 333-56167) (the “S-47)).

32 Articles Supplementary regarding the Company’s 9%% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Shares of Beneficial Interest, $.01 par value per share (the “Series A Preferred Shares)
(incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-A Registration Statement
(File No. 1-14307) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) on
December 16, 1998 (the “December 1998 8-A")).

3.3  Bylaws of the Company.

4.1  Specimen of certificate representing the Company’s Common Shares of Beneficial Interest,
par value $.01 per share (the “Common Shares”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

4.2 Specimen of certificate representing the Series A Preferred Shares (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001).

43 Loan Agreement, dated December 1, 1998, between the Company and AUSA Life Insurance
Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated December 9, 1998).

4.4  Loan Agreement dated June 1, 2001 between the Company and Bank of America, N.A.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated June 20, 2001)

4.5  Form of Mortgage between the Company and Allstate Life Insurance Company dated
December 14, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

4.6 Form of Promissory Note between the Company and Allstate Life Insurance Company dated
December 14, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

477  PBridge Loan Agreement between the Company and Bank One NA dated as of October 1,
2002. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated October 1, 2002).

4.8  Loan Agreement dated December 10, 2002 between the Company and Equitable Life
Insurance Company of Iowa and Security Life of Denver Insurance Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 10,
2002).
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

415

10.1

10.2

103

104

10.5

Promissory Note A dated December 10, 2002 between the Company and Equitable Life
Insurance Company of Iowa with a maximum principal amount of $35 million (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 10, 2002).

Promissory Note B dated December 10, 2002 between the Company and Equitable Life
Insurance Company of lowa with a maximum principal amount of $40 million (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 10, 2002).

Promissory Note C dated December 10, 2002 between the Company and Security Life of
Denver Insurance Company with a maximum principal amount of $50 million (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 10,
2002).

Promissory Note D dated December 10, 2002 between the Company and Security Life of
Denver Insurance Company with a maximum principal amount of $40 million (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 10,
2002).

Form of the Mortgage, Security Agreement, Financing Statement and Fixture Filing dated
December 10, 2002 between the Company and Equitable Life Insurance Company of Iowa
and Security Life of Denver Insurance Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 10, 2002).

Form of the Mortgage, Leasehold Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing between
the Company and Metropolitan Life Insurance Company dated January 16, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated January 16, 2003).

Promissory Note with a principal amount of $40 million between the Company and
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company dated January 16, 2003 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 16, 2003).

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Great Lakes REIT, L.P, dated
December 27, 1996 (the “Partnership Agreement”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 14, 1997).

First Amendment to the Partnership Agreement, dated February 6, 1997 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11
(File No. 333-22619) (the “S-117)).

Second Amendment to the Partnership Agreement, dated February 10, 1997 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998).

Third Amendment to the Partnership Agreement, dated May 22, 1998 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998).

Fourth Amendment to the Partnership Agreement, dated December 23, 1998 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 23,
1998).
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document

*10.6  The Great Lakes REIT Equity and Performance Incentive Plan (the “Equity Plan”)
(incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company’s Proxy Statement on
Schedule 14A dated April 18, 2001).

*10.7  Form of Option Agreement for use in connection with options granted under the Equity Plan;

*10.8

*10.9

*10.10

*10.11

*10.12

*10.13

*10.14

*10.15

*10.16

10.17

12.1
21.1

no options were granted to Named Executive Officers in 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-X for the year ended December 31,
1998).

Form of Non-Qualified Option Certificate for use in connection with options granted to
independent trustees under the Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998).

Form of Employment Agreement dated July 17, 1998 between the Company and each of
Richard A. May and Patrick R. Hunt (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998).

Form of Employment Agreement dated July 17, 1998 between the Company and each of
Raymond M. Braun, James Hicks and Richard L. Rasley (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1998). '

Form of Employment Agreement dated July 17, 1998 between the Company and each of
Kim S. Mills and Edith M. Scurto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998).

Limited Purpose Employee Loan Program of the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.61 to the Company’s Form 10/A Registration Statement dated January 9, 1997).

Form of Limited Purpose Employee Loan Program Loan Security Agreement for use in
connection with limited purpose employee loans (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000).
Amounts that were to mature in 2002 for Richard A. May, Patrick R. Hunt, Raymond M.
Braun and Richard L. Rasley were extended on February 5, 2002 to mature one year later.

Restricted Stock Agreement dated May 1, 1996 between the Company and Raymond Braun
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8.6 to the S-11).

Form of Restricted Shares Agreement; no restricted shares were granted to Named Executive
Officers in 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-C for
the period ended June 30, 2000).

Form of Change in Control Agreement dated June 1, 2000 between the Company and each of
Adam E. Berman, Brett A. Brown and Eric Niederman (incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.17 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2000).

Form of the ground lease between the Company and Advocate Health and Hospitals
Corporation relating to 7 of the 8 medical office properties acquired (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 1,
2002).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Share Dividends.

Subsidiaries of the Company.
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document

23.1  Consent of Independent Auditors.
24.1  Power of Attorney (set forth on the signature page hereof).
99.1  Certification Pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

¥ Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

During the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2002, the Company filed the following reports on
Form 8-K:

Items 2 and 7 Form 8-K dated October 1, 2002, filed on October 14, 2002, as amended by
Form 8-K/A filed on December 13, 2002, reporting Acquisition of Medical Office Buildings and
Required Financial Statements.

Item 5 Form 8-K dated and filed on December 23, 2002, reporting Other Events.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, on the 24th day of March, 2003.

GREAT LAKES REIT

By: /s/ RICHARD A. MAY

Richard A. May
" Chairman of the Board of Trustees
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated and on the
24th day of March, 2003.

Signature Title

/s/ RICHARD A. MAY Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Chief Executive
Richard A. May Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ PATRICK R. HUNT
Patrick R. Hunt

President, Chief Operating Officer and Trustee

/s/ JaMES HICKS Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (Principal Financial
James Hicks Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ MATTHEW S. DOMINSKI

— Trustee
Matthew S. Dominski
/s/ DANIEL P. KEARNEY
- Trustee
Daniel P Kearney
/s/ LEANDRA R. KNES
Trustee
Leandra R. Knes
/s/ DONALD E. PHILLIPS
— Trustee
Donald E. Phillips
/s/ JAMES E. SCHRAGER
Trustee
James E. Schrager
/s/ RICHARD E. TERRY
Trustee

Richard E. Terry
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Richard A. May, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Great Lakes REIT;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishihg and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a
date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”);
and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal
controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have indicated in this annual report whether
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions
with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 24, 2003 /s/ RICHARD A. MAY

Richard A. May
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, James Hicks, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Great Lakes REIT;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a
date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”);
and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal
controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions
with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 24, 2003 ' /s/ JAMES HICKS

James Hicks
Chief Financial Officer
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Great Lakes REIT

Index to Financial Statements (Item 15(a))

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Auditors . .. ... .. e

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 ... ...................

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 . .

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December
2002, 2001 and 2000 . . ... e

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 . .. e e e e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . ............ ... .. ..

Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule III-Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation as of December 31,2002 . ... .. ...

Schedules, other than as listed above, are omitted because they are not applicable or the
equivalent information has been included elsewhere herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Trustees and Sharcholders
Great Lakes REIT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Great Lakes REIT as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2002. Our audit also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15(a). These
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Great Lakes REIT at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002 Great Lakes REIT
adopted the provisions of Statements of Financial Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” and No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”.

Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, Illinois
January 27, 2003
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Great Lakes REIT
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In Thousands, except per share data)

Assets
Properties:
Land. ... e e

Assets held forsale, net . . ... ... . e
Cash and cash equivalents . .......... ... ... .. i
Real estate tax eSCIOWS . . . .ot
Rents receivable . ....... ... . .
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of accumulated amortization ........
Goodwill . . .

Liabiiities and shareholders’ equity

Bank loan payable . . .. ... ... L.
Mortgage loans payable . ... ... .. .. ..
Bonds payable secured by assets held forsale ................ ... ......
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .............. ... .. ... ... ...
Accrued real estate taxes . . .. ... L
Dividends payable ... ... ... ... .. e
Prepaid rent . .. ...
Security deposits . . . . ... e

Total labilities . . ... .. ..
MInOTity INTEIESLS . . . o vttt et e e e e

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred shares of beneficial interest ($0.01 par value, 10,000 shares authorized,
1,500 9%% Series A Cumulative Redeemable shares, with a $25.00 per share
Liquidation Preference, issued and outstanding) . .. ....................

Common shares of beneficial interest ($0.01 par value, 60,000 shares authorized;
16,550 and 16,503 shares issued and outstanding in 2002 and 2001,
TESPECHVELY) . o o e e e

Paid-in-capital . .. ... .. ..

Retained earnings (deficit) . .. ... .. . .

Employee share purchase loans . ......... . it

Deferred compensation ... ... .. e

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . . .......... ... ... .....

Total shareholders’ equity . . . ... . ot e
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . ... ... ... ... . ... ... . ... ... ..

December 31,

2002 2001
$ 65,245 $ 64,736
516,662 457,849
581,907 522,585
65,030 56,839
516877 465,746
8,928 —
5,061 2,896
69 225
6,261 6,661
9,110 6,674
1,061 1,061
1,614 3,229
$548,981  $486,492
$ 36,000 $102,250
275050 150,868
3,620 3,960
3,740 2,656
14872 12,710
2,539 304
4,044 3,539
1,617 1,629
341,482 277,916
677 682
37,500 37,500
165 165
208,319 208,065
(19,765)  (15,927)
(16,154)  (20,083)
2,035y (2,325)
(1,208) 499
206,822 207,894
$548,981  $486,492

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Great Lakes REIT

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

(In Thousands, except per share data)

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Revenues:
Rental $76,539 $72,336  $69,243
Reimbursements 21,461 20,420 20,052
396 318
Telecommunications 452 411
Tenant service 414 374
Interest 1,532 1,734
583 525

Total revenues . . ... ... e 101,409 96,133 92,657
Expenses:
Real estate taxes . .. ..o i i e 16,095 14,827 12,708
Other property operating . ... ...t 26,980 23869 23,474
General and administrative . . .. .. . e 5,241 4,992 5,555
INEETeSt . . . o ot e 15,422 14,192 15,008
Depreciation and amortization . ............ .. ... . ... .. 19,913 18,369 15,819

Total expenses ... ... 83,651 76,249 72,564
Income before gain on sale of properties and allocation to minority

IDEETESIS © o o e e e e e e 17,758 19,884 20,093
Gain on sale of properties . ...... ... .. . —_ — 11,134
MIDOTity INtEIESIS . . o v oot e e e e e e 65 52 82
Income from continuing operations . ... .........c.. ..., 17,693 19,832 31,145
Discontinued operations, net (including gain on sale of properties of

$7,789 10 2002) . . . . 8,759 1,788 3,044
Net INCOME . . v oo e e e e e e e e e e ' 26,452 21,620 34,189
Income allocated to preferred shareholders . ..................... 3,656 3,656 3,656
Net income applicable to common shares . ...................... $22,796 $17,964 $30,533
Earnings per common share from continuing operations—basic . ... ... $ 08 $ 098 $ 167
Earnings per common share—basic . ... ........ .o $ 139 § 109 § 185
Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic. . ............. 16,372 16,520 16,531
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations . ... ... $ 085 % 097 §$ 166
Diluted earnings per common share ........................... $ 138 $ 1.08 § 184
Weighted average common shares outstanding—diluted ............. 16,522 16,655 16,631
Comprehensive income:
NELINCOMIE . o v vt v ot et e e e e e e e e e e e e i, $26,452  $21,620 $34,189
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements . ............. (1,707) 499 —
Total comprehensive inCOmMe . .. ... ... o $24,745 $22.119 $34,189

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Great Lakes REIT
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(Doilars in Thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Preferred Shares
Balance at beginning of period. . . ........ ... ... o L $ 37,500 $ 37,500 $ 37,500
Balance atend of period . . ... ... .. .. 37,500 37,500 37,500
Common Shares
Balance at beginning of period. . ....... ... ... ... ... .. .. 165 167 163
Exercise of share options . . . ..., — — 3
Restricted share awards . . . . ...... ... ... i — — 2
Purchase of treasury shares . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... — (2) (1)
Balance atend of period . ....... ... ... o o oL 165 165 167
Paid-in capital
Balance at beginning of period. . .. ....... ... ... o L. 208,065 211,301 204,564
Exercise of shareoptions . .. ...... ... ... ... . . .. 254 412 3,916
Restricted share awards . . . ... ... ... ... e — — 3,136
Purchase of treasury shares .. ......... .. .. ... .. . ... — (3,648) (315)
Balance atend of period . . ...... ... ... .. ... .. .. 208,319 208,065 211,301
Retained earnings (deficit)
Balance at beginning of period. . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... (15,927) (7,176) (5,936)
Netincome . . .. .o e e e 26,452 21,620 34,189
Distributions/dividends ... ........ .. ... .. . i, (30,290)  (30,371) (35,429)
Balance atend of period . . ... ... ... (19,765)  (15,927) (7,176)
Employee share purchase loans
Balance at beginning of period. . ... ... ... . L (20,083)  (20,096) (16,335)
Repayment of loans. . ...... ... ... .. . . 3,929 277 —
Exercise of share options . . . ......... i — (264)  (3,761)
Balance atendof period . .. ... ... L (16,154)  (20,083) (20,096)
Deferred compensation
Balance at beginning of period. . .. ... ... L. (2,325)  (2,623) (22)
Restricted share awards . . .. ...... ... ... — — (3,138)
Amortization of deferred compensation ...................... 290 298 537
Balance atendof period .. ... ... ... oo (2,035) (2,325) (2,623)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance at beginning of period. . .. ........ . ... o 499 — —
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements .. .......... (1,707) 499 —
Balance atendof period . .. ... ... ... L (1,208) 499 —
Total shareholders’ equity .. .. ... ... . . $206,822 $207,894 $219,073

The accompanying notes are an-integral part of these financial statements.
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Great Lakes REIT
Consclidated Statememnts of Cash Flows

(Dollars in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Netincome. . ......... .. $ 26452 § 21,620 § 34,189
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows from operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization . ......................... 21,077 19,852 16,975

Gain on sale of properties, net . . ............ ... ..., ... (7,789) — (11,134)

Othernon-cash items. .. ........ .. ... .. .. 355 350 618
Net changes in assets and liabilities:

Rents receivable . ... .. . . e 400 1,067 (1,454)

Real estate tax escrows and other assets . .................. (602) (903) (66)

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities ....... 1,577 (1,935) (904)

Accrued real estate taxes ... ....... ... 2,162 1,826 (803)

Payment of deferred leasing costs . .. ........... . ... .. ... (3,421) (1,759)  (1,878)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ................... 40,211 40,118 35,543
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of properties. . ... ... o (86,361)  (56,759)  (9,490)
Additions to buildings and improvements . .. ................. (16,020)  (12,241)  (9,525)
Proceeds from property sales, net. . ........................ 33,052 — 39,620
Other investing activities, net . . . ... ... . .. i 8 (93) (122)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . . .. ....... ... (69,321)  (69,093) 20,483
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share options . . .. ................. 254 148 158
Proceeds from repayment of employee share loans .. ......... .. 3,929 277 —
Proceeds from bank and mortgage loans payable. . ............. 224,250 255,715 24,500
Distributions / dividends paid . . . .. ... ... .. ... ... . L. (28,055)  (30,371) (35,429)
Distributions to minority interests ................ ... ...... (70) (49) (96)

Purchase of minority interests . ............ ... ... .. .. .... — — (258)
Purchase of treasury shares .. ........... ... ... ... .. . ... - (3,650) (316)
Payment of bank and mortgage loansand bonds . . ............. (166,658)  (189,548) (45,252)

Payment of deferred financing costs . .. ........ ... ... ... ... (2,375) (1,436) (66)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ............. 31,275 31,086  (56,759)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . ... ... .. .. 2,165 2,111 (733)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ... .............. 2,896 785 1,518

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year. . .................... § 5061 $ 2896 $ 785

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow:

Interest paid . . ... .. $ 15,879 § 14,552 $ 15,239

Non-cash financing transactions:

Employee share purchase loans .. ......................... — $ 264 $ 3,761

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

F-6



Great Lakes REIT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Doliars in thousands, except per share data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Activities

Great Lakes REIT, a Maryland real estate investment trust (the “Company”), was formed in 1992
to invest in income-producing real property. The principal business of the Company is the ownership,
management, leasing, renovation and acquisition of suburban and medical office properties primarily
located in the Midwest. At December 31, 2002, the Company owned and operated 46 properties
primarily located in suburban areas of Chicago, Milwaukee, Detroit, Columbus, Minneapolis, Denver
and Cincinnati. The Company leases office space to over 650 tenants in a variety of businesses.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries and controlled partnership. Inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Properties

Costs incurred for the acquisition, development, construction and improvement of properties are
capitalized. Certain costs of yet-to-be acquired properties, including deposits and professional fees, are
capitalized as other assets. These costs are subsequently capitalized as property acquisition costs or
charged to expense when it becomes apparent that acquisition of a particular property is not probable.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company allocates a portion of the purchase price of properties
acquired to significant intangible assets such as above or below market operating leases.

Depreciation of buildings is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, generally 40 years. Depreciation of tenant improvements is computed using the
straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or useful life. For the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, depreciation expense amounted to $17,912, $17,256 and $14,766,
respectively. Fully depreciated assets of $4,714, $4,109 and $2,079 were written off in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

Deferred Costs

Deferred costs consist principally of financing fees and leasing commissions that are amortized
over the terms of the respective agreements. Upon early termination of leases, unamortized leasing
costs are charged to expense.

Revenue Recognition

Minimum rentals are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related leases.
Deferred rents receivable at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $5,823 and $5,427, respectively.
Additional rents from expense reimbursements for common area maintenance expenses and real estate
taxes are recognized in the period in which the related expenses are incurred.
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Great Lakes REIT
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in theusands, except per share data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company evaluates whether accounts receivable from tenants, including straight-line rents, are
collectible using the specific identification method. In circumstances where a specific tenant has
defaulted on its financial obligations, the Company records a specific reserve for bad debts against
amounts due to reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount expected to be collected.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity date of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had $4,858 and
$2,693, respectively, in a money market fund.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be treated as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the
applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In order to qualify as a
REIT, the Company is required to distribute to shareholders at least 90% of its taxable income and to
meet certain asset and income tests as well as certain other requirements. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes has been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

As of December 31, 2002, properties net of accumulated depreciation, rents receivable, goodwill
and prepaid rent have a federal income tax basis of approximately $536,909, $1,076, -0- and -0-,
respectively.

Reconciliation of Net Income to Estimated Taxable Income (Unaudited)

Earnings and profits, which determine the taxability of distributions to shareholders, differ from
net income reported for financial reporting purposes due to differences for U.S. Federal tax purposes
in the estimated useful lives and methods used to compute depreciation and the carrying value (basis)
of the investments in properties, among other things. The following table reconciles the Company’s net
income to estimated taxable income for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2000 2000
Net iNCOME .« o v v vt e et e e e e e e e e e e $26,452  $21,620 $34,189
Book/tax differences in depreciation and amortization . ............. 7,501 7,145 4,786
Book/tax differences in gain on sale of properties. . ................ (7,047) — (336)
Increase (decrease) in advanced rent payments ................... 205 942 (1,339)
Restricted share and option compensation . . ..................... 290 (312) 320
Straight-line rent adjustments . ... ...... .. ... ... (632) 174 (684)
Amortization of goodwill .. ....... ... ... . oo — 74 74
Other, net . .. .o e e 46 (100) 56
Estimated taxable income . .. ........ ... ... .ol $26,815 $29,543 $37,066
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Great Lakes REIT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Share Options

The Company uses the intrinsic value method permitted by Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25), in accounting for its options on
common shares. Under APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized because the exercise price of
the Company’s employee share options equals or exceeds the market price of the underlying shares at
the date of grant.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to the effect of interest rate changes
and limits such risks by following established risk management policies including the use of derivatives.
The Company uses various derivative financial instruments to manage, or hedge, interest rate risks and
requires that such instruments be effective in reducing the interest rate risk exposure that they are
designated to hedge.

The Company recognizes all derivatives on its balance sheet at fair value effective January 1, 2001.
Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair value through income. If the derivative is a
hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivatives are either
offset against the change in fair value of the assets, liabilities, or firm commitments through earnings or
recognized in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The
ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair value will be immediately recognized in earnings.

In October 2001, the Company entered into two separate interest rate swap agreements with
notional amounts of $25,000 each. One agreement expires in December 2003 and fixes the interest rate
on $25,000 of variable rate debt at a maximum of 4.27%. The second swap agreement expires in
December 2004 and fixes the interest rate on $25,000 of the Company’s variable rate debt at a
maximum of 4.88% per annum. The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of
non-performance by counterparties under the agreement, but the Company does not expect
non-performance by any of these counterparties. The amount of such exposure is generally limited to
the amount of any payments due but not yet received from the counterparty.

At December 31, 2002, the fair value of the swap agreements was a liability of $1,208 and is
reflected as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2002. The change in fair value of the interest rate swap agreements has been reflected
entirely in other comprehensive income in 2002 and 2001, as they are effective cash flow hedges.

Goodwill

Through December 31, 2001, goodwill was amortized to expense on a straight-line basis over its
estimated life of twenty years. Accumulated amortization was $428 and $354 at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively. ‘

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations, and No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets, effective for fiscal years beginning. after December 15, 2001. Under the new rules, goodwill is
not amortized but is subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with these Statements.




Great Lakes REIT
Notes to Consclidated Fimancial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars im thousands, except per share data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Company has performed the required impairment tests of goodwill as of January 1, 2003, and
has determined that goodwill is not impaired as of that date.

Impairment and Disposal of Long-lived Assets

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted this standard
effective January 1, 2002. The Company did not record any impairment losses in 2002, 2001 and 2000.

This standard stipulates that operating results, including gain or loss on sale, of all properties sold,
or designated as held for sale, subsequent to the effective date will be reported as discontinued
operations for all periods presented.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in 2001 and 2000 have been reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation.
Such reclassifications did not affect the Company’s financial position or the results of operations.
2. Deferred Costs

Deferred costs consisted of the following at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
Deferred financing costs ... ........ .. ... ... . . . ... $ 4,538 § 2,437
Deferred leasing costs. . . . ... . 10,487 9,090

15,025 11,527
Less accumulated amortization . ............ .. .. .. .. .. .. 5,915 4,853

$ 9,110 $ 6,674

During the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, amortization of financing costs was
$1,100, $497 and $482, respectively, and amortization of leasing costs was $1,961, $1,917 and $1,577,
respectively. Deferred leasing costs related to property dispositions of $478 were written off in 2002.
Fully amortized deferred costs of $1,820 and $3,441 were written off in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Great Lakes REIT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

3. Long-Term Debt

Mortgage loans payable aggregated $275,050 and $150,868 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The mortgage loans payable require monthly payments of principal and interest. Interest
rates at December 31, 2002, ranged from 2.79% to 7.44%.

The Company has obtained a bank letter of credit to secure repayment of outstanding bonds
payable in a face amount of approximately $4,044. The Company has guaranteed repayment of the
letter of credit to the issuing bank as well as granted the issuing bank a first mortgage on one of the
Company’s properties. In the event performance is required under this guarantee, any payments made
in satisfaction of the guarantee would be applied in satisfaction of debt service requirements relating to
the underlying bonds that are reflected in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. Accordingly, any
potential loss relating to this guarantee is minimal and no liability for such guarantee is reflected in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Company’s obligation under this guarantee will expire on June 1, 2009.
The interest rate on the bonds (1.7% per annum at December 31, 2002) is reset weekly by the bond
placement agent.

On December 10, 2002, the Company completed a mortgage financing transaction with an
institutional lender (the “ING loan”). The ING Loan has four tranches, designated as Notes A, B, C
and D. The Company borrowed $141,750 at the closing of the ING Loan, representing the full
principal balance under Notes A, B and C and a portion of the amount available under Note D, as
described below.

Note A has a principal sum of $35,000, a fixed interest rate of 4.3% and an expected maturity date
of January 1, 2008. Note B has a principal sum of $40,000, a fixed interest rate of 4.77% and an
expected maturity date of January 1, 2010. Note C has a principal sum of $50,000, a floating interest
rate of LIBOR plus 1.35% (2.79% at December 31, 2002), which rate adjusts on a monthly basis, and
an expected maturity date of February 1, 2008. Notes A, B and C provide for principal amortization
over a 25-year period until the expected maturity date.

The fourth tranche of the ING Loan, designated as Note D, is a revolving line of credit with a
maximum principal amount available under Note D of $40,000 and bears interest at a rate of LIBOR
plus 1.60% (3.04% at December 31, 2002), which rate adjusts on a monthly basis. Annual principal
pay-downs of $1 are required on the balance outstanding under Note D until January 1, 2008, at which
time any amounts outstanding are expected to be due.

In 2001, the Company entered into two separate interest rate swap agreements with notional
amounts of $25,000 each. One agreement expires in December 2003 and fixes the interest rate on
$25,000 of Note C of the ING loan at a maximum of 4.27%. The second swap agreement expires in
December 2004 and fixes the interest rate on $25,000 of Note C of the ING loan at a maximum of
4.88% per annum.

At December 31, 2002, the fair value of the swap agreements was a liability of $1,208 and is
reflected as other assets and accumulated other comprehensive income in the consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2002.




Great Lakes REIT
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

3. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The following is a summary of principal maturities of mortgage loans, bank loan and bonds

payable:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
$ 42,859
7,470
7,908
28,106
17,960
210,367

$314,670

At December 31, 2002, properties with a carrying amount of approximately $472,973 were pledged
as collateral under the various debt agreements.

4. Share Options

In 2001, the Company adopted the Amended and Restated Equity and Performance Incentive Plan
(the “Amended Plan”) that allows the granting of options on shares to employees and members of the
Board of Trustees. The Amended Plan, which superceded all previous plans, provides that 1,088,690
common shares were reserved for issuance after May 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2002, 931,340
common shares were available for future grant,

For options granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000, the exercise prices at the dates of grant were equal to
or greater than the fair value of the Company’s shares.

A summary of the Company’s share option activity and related information for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2002 2001 ' 2000

Price per Price per Price per

Shares Share(a) Shares Share(a) Shares Share(a)

Outstanding at beginning of year .. .. 1,180,299 $16.27 1,177,400 $16.23 1,375,040 $16.04
Granted . .......... .. ... ..... 99,750  $16.65 57,000 $15.90 89,200 $16.71
Exercised ..................... 16,801 $15.13 37,668 $14.47 282,015 $15.37
Cancelled. . ... ................ 2,000 $16.56 16,433  $16.05 4,825 $14.61
Outstanding at end of year ... ... .. 1,261,248 $16.32 1,180,299 $16.27 1,177,400 $16.23
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4. Share Options (Continued)

Shares Price per

Exercisable  Share(a)

Asof December 31,2002 . ... ... ... .. .. . 1,152,165 $16.31

As of December 31,2001 .. ... ... ... .. e 1,023,026  $16.40

As of December 31,2000 . .. ......... ... ... .. ... .. ... 845,400 $16.49

(a) Weighted-average exercise price per share
The weighted-average fair value of options granted is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2002 . . . . ... $0.65

Year ended December 31, 2001 . . .. ... $1.77

Year ended December 31,2000 . . .. ... ... . .. $2.53

The weighted-average life of options outstanding at December 31, 2002 was 5.24 years.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by FASB
Statement 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and has been determined as if the
Company had accounted for its employee share options under the fair value method of that Statement.
The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Risk-free Bividend Volatility  Weighted Average
. Interest Rate Yields Factors Expected Life
Year ended December 31,2002 ............. 4.00% 9.73% 0.19% 5 years
Year ended December 31,2001 ............. 513%  9.8%-10.2%  0.324% S years
Year ended December 31,2000 ............. 5.10% 8.7% 0.354% 5 years

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of
traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation
models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.
Because the Company’s employee share options have characteristics significantly different from those of
traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of its employee share options.

The effects on 2002, 2001 and 2000 pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per common
share, both basic and diluted, of amortizing to expense the estimated fair value of share options are not
necessarily representative of the effects on net income to be reported in future years due to such things
as the vesting period of the share options, and the potential for issuance of additional share options in
future years.

F-13




Great Lakes REIT
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4, Share Options (Continued)

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value.of the options was amortized to
expense over the options’ vesting period. The Company’s unaudited pro forma 1nf0rmat10n follows:

Years ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

Net income as reported S ‘ "$22,796 $17,964  $30,533
Less employee share option compensation at fair value . ... ... c172 v 453 630

Pro forma net income . . . .$22,624 $17,511  $29,903

Pro forma basic earnings per common share ‘ . $ 106 $ 181

Pro forma diluted earnings per common share ‘ 37 $ 105 $ 1.80

The Company had a limited purpose employee loan program whereby employees may borrow all
or a portion of the cost of exercising options on common shares held by the employee. Such loans bear
interest at 6.83% which is payable monthly, are recourse to the employees, had an original term of five
years provided the employee remains employed by the Company and are secured by a pledge of the
common shares acquired by the employee through this program. The Company discontinued the
program in 2001 and will require that all loans be repaid on their current maturity dates. As of
December 31, 2002, employees had pledged approximately 1,100,000 common shares as security for
loan amounts outstanding of $16,154 due the Company. Such amount is reflected as a reduction of
shareholders’ equity until the loans are repaid. The maturity schedule for employee loans at
December 31, 2002 is:

Years ended December 31, Amount
2003 ... e e e e $ 8,438
2004 . . e 3,909
20005 . e e 3,513
L 294

$16,154

5. Restricted Share Grants

On June 1, 2000, the Company issued 200,000 restricted common shares to certain officers and
employees under the 1997 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan. The shares vest.ten years from the
date of issuance provided the recipient is still employed by the Company, but may vest earlier in
increments during the period ending December 31, 2002 subject to the Company achlevmg certain
performance objectives. Upon a change in control of the Company, up to 100,000 of the restricted
shares issued to certain officers of the Company vest immediately. The total fair value of the restricted
shares at the date of issuance ($3,138) is being amortized into expense over ten years on a straight-line
basis, subject to adjustment when the Company determines that it is probable to achieve certain
performance objectives which accelerate the full or partial vesting of the shares. Based on year 2000
performance, 33,336 shares vested to the participants. No shares vested in 2002 and 2001. The
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

5. Restricted Share Grants (Continued)

Company recorded compensation expense of $290, $298 and $523 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
related to the restricted share plan.

6. Leases

The Company leases office and industrial properties to tenants under noncancellable operating
leases that expire at various dates through 2017. The lease agreements typically provide for a specific
monthly payment plus reimbursement of certain operating expenses. The following is a summary of
minimum future rental revenue under noncancellable operating leases:

Year ending December 31, _Armt_
2008 L . e e e e $ 74,279
2004 L e e e e e e 58,230
2005 . e e e e e 45,183
2000 . L e e 32,802
2007 .. e e 23,506
Thereafter. . .. ... . i e e 26,951

$260,951

Minimum future rentals do not include amounts that are received from tenants as a
reimbursement of property operating expenses.

7. Dividends

The Company declared dividends of $26,634, $26,715 and $31,773 to common shareholders of
record during the calendar years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company has determined the
common shareholders’ treatment for Federal income tax purposes to be as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Ordinary income . .. ... .. $26,129 $26,715 $20,973
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain . . ............... — — 1,485
20% rate capital gains . ... ...... . ... ... 505 — 9,315
Total. .. ..o $26,634  $26,715 $31,773

The Company paid dividends to preférred shareholders of record in 2002, 2001 and 2000 of $3,656,
all of which represented ordinary income for Federal income tax purposes to the preferred
shareholders.
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(Dotlars in thousands, except per share data)

8. Property Acquisitions
The following properties were acquired in 2002, 2001 and 2000 and the results of their operations

are included in the consolidated statements of income from their respective dates of acquisition.
Location

Year ended December 31, 2002:
N19W24133 Riverwood Dr.

Date Acquired  Acquisition Cost

Pewaukee, WI .. ... ... ... ... ... 1/30/2002 $ 8,652
1111 East Touhy Avenue _

Des Plaines, IL. . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 8/1/2002 10,052
387 Shuman Boulevard ‘ _

Naperville, IL . . ... .. o 10/15/2002 7,856

Medical Office Properties:
Good Shepherd POB 1

27790 West Highway 22

Barrington, IL. ... ....... . ... . o o oL 10/1/2002 7,155
Good Shepherd POB 11

27750 West Highway 22

Barrington, IL . ... ... ... 10/1/2002 6,539
1020 E. Ogden Avenue
Naperville, IL . . .. ... o 10/1/2002 8,208

Good Samaritan POB 1

3825 Highland Avenue

Downers Grove, 1L . ......... ... ... .. ..... 10/1/2002 8,174
Good Samaritan POB IT

3825 Highland Avenue

Downers Grove, IL . .. ....... ... ... ... ... .. 10/1/2002 13,547
4400 West 93t Street

Oak Lawn, IL ... ...... ... ... ... . ... ... ... 10/1/2002 8,275
2301/2315 East 93 Street S

Chicago, IL .. ... . . i 10/1/2002 . 4,423
17850 S. Kedzie Avenue ' . .

Hazel Crest, IL 60429, .. .............. e . 10/1/2002 3,480

$86,361

Year ended December 31, 2001:
1600 Golf Road

Rolling Meadows, IL . ...................... 3/1/2001 $25,616

3000 Lakeside Drive
Bannockburn, IL. .. ....... ... . ... ... ... .. .. 8/10/2001 31,143
$56,759

Year ended December 31, 2000:
1920 and 1930 N. Thoreau Drive
Schaumburg, IL . ....... ... ... ... .. ... ... 8/1/2000 $ 9,490
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(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

9. Property Dispositions

The Company sold four properties in 2002 and two properties in 2000 as follows:

Contract  Gain (Loss) On
Property ‘ Date of Sale Price Sale
160 Hansen Court
Wood Dale, IL .. ... ... 4/22/2002° $ 2,322 $ 1,132
3400 Dundee Road
Northbrook, IL . . ... ... 7/1/2002 8,175 3,835
305,315 and 325 Eisenhower Parkway
Ann Arbor, ML, . ... ... . . . 8/30/2002 21,800 2,216
180 Hansen Court
Wood Dale, IL .. ... ... . . . 11/22/2002 1,755 606
$34,052 $ 7,789
3010 and 3020 Woodcreek Drive
Downers Grove, IL . . .. ... .. i 4/12/2000 $12,700 $ 2,958
183 Inverness Drive
Englewood, CO .. ... ... .. . e 12/1/2000 28,250 8,176
Total 2000 . .. .. e $40,950 $11,134

The sales proceeds from 160 Hansen Court were reinvested in 1111 Touhy Avenue, Des Plaines,
Illinois. The sales proceeds from 3400 Dundee Road were reinvested in N9W24133 Riverwood Drive,
Pewaukee, Wisconsin. The sales proceeds from 305, 315 and 325 Eisenhower Parkway were reinvested

in the medical office buildings.

The sales proceeds of the 3010 and 3020 Woodcreek Drive property were partially reinvested in

1920 and 1930 Thoreau Drive, Schaumburg, Illinois

The net book value of properties sold was $24,410 and $28,424 in 2002 and 2000, respectively.

The components of discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 are outlined below and include the results of operations through the date of each respective sale
for the year ended December 31, 2002 (or all operations of properties held for sale) and all operations
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9. Property Dispositions (Continued)

for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 related to properties sold in 2002 and the properties
held for sale at December 31, 2002.

Years ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Revenues $4,704 $7,013 $7,872

Expenses:

Real estate taxes and property operating expenses 3,602 3,487

Interest 140 185
1,483 1,156

Total expenses 5,225 4,828

Income from discontinued operations 1,788 3,044
Gain on sale of properties — —

Discontinued operations, net $1,788 $3,044

10. Segment Information

The Company had three reportable segments at December 31, 2002, distinguished by property
type. The property types are office, office/service center and medical office. Office buildings are
generally single-story or multi-story buildings used by tenants for office activities. The buildings
generally have common area lobbies and other amenities including food service areas, atriums and
limited underground parking facilities. Office/service center buildings generally are one-story buildings
with no common areas. Tenant spaces generally have less than 100% office use with the non-office
space used for showroom, technical or light storage purposes. Medical office properties are generally
connected to or located near hospitals, and the tenants in those properties are health-care providers.

Interest expense incurred by the Company is a combination of property specific long-term debt
and long-term debt that is secured by properties across the Company’s reportable segments. Interest
expense incurred on property-specific debt is allocated to that property’s segment. Interest expense
incurred on long-term debt that is secured by properties across the Company’s reportable segments is
allocated to the reportable segments based on the square footage of properties in that segment that are
associated with the long-term debt.

The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based net operating income, which
the Company defines as property revenues (rental, reimbursement, parking, telecommunications, tenant
service and other income) less property operating expenses and real estate taxes.
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Following is a summary report of segment information for the years ended December 31, 2002,

2001 and 2000:

Great Lakes REIT
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2002 2001 2000
Revenues
Office.......o. i $ 92,718 §$ 89,823 § 84,423
Office/service center ....................... 4,233 4,952 5,763
Medical office . . . ...... ... .. .. .. . .. 2,507 — —
Deferred rental revenues . . .................. 632 (174) 737
Interest. . . ... i 1,319 1,532 1,734
Total. . ... $101,409 $ 96,133 $ 92,657
Net operating income
Office ....... .. i $ 52,829 § 53,094 § 50,146
Office/service center . ........ ..., 2,269 2,985 3,858
Medicaloffice . . . ........ ... ... ... ... . .... 1,285 — —_
Total. . ... . . $ 56,383 § 56,079 §$ 54,004
Depreciation and amortization
Office . ...t $ 17,449 § 16,390 § 14,247
Office/service center ... ......cc.vuieinneon. 1,037 1,406 1,024
Medical office . . . ............. . ... ..., 507 — —
Other . ... ... e 920 573 548
Total.. ... .. $ 19,913 § 18,369 $ 15,819
Interest expense
Office . ... i $ 14,246 $ 13,381 § 13,881
Office/service center . .. .. ... ... viunne ... 854 811 1,127
Medical office . .. ...... ... ... . .. . 322 — —
Total . ... $ 15422 $ 14,192 §$ 15,008
- Income before gain on sale of properties and

allocation to minority interests:
Office net operating income . . . . .............. $ 52,829 $53,094 § 50,146
Office depreciation ........................ (17,449) (16,390) (14,247)
Office interest expense . .................... (14,246) (13,381) (13,881)
Office service center net operating income . ... ... 2,269 2,985 3,858
Office service center depreciation. . ............ (1,037)  (1,406)  (1,024)
Office service center interest expense . .......... (854) (811) (1,127)
Medical office net operating income . . . .. ....... 1,285 — —
Medical office depreciation .................. (507) — —
Medical office interest expense. ... ............ (322) — —
Deferred rental revenue. ... ......cov oL 632 (174) 737
Interest iNCOME . . . ... o v it it 1,319 1,532 1,734
General and administrative . ................. (5,241)  (4,992)  (5,555)
Other depreciation . ....................... (920) (573) (548)
Income before gain on sale of properties and

allocation to minority interests .............. $ 17,758 § 19,884 $ 20,093
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As of December 31,
2002 2001

Assets
$444,642  $449,501
Office/service center 18,246 23,832
Medical office 61,814 —
8,928 —
15,351 13,159

$548,981 $486,492

Years. ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

Additions to properties

Office ........ e e e e e $67,607 $18,722
Office/service center $ 1,393 293
Medical office — —

$69,000 $19,015
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11. Earnings Per Share

Numerator:

Net income before gain on sale of properties and
discontinued operations .....................

Gain on sale of properties . . ...................

Discontinued operations, net .. .................

Net income applicable to common shares ..........

Numerator for basic earnings per common share . . . . .
Minority interests . ............ ... . ...

Numerator for diluted earnings per common share . . .

Denominator (in thousands):

Denominator for basic earnings per common share
Weighted average shares . .....................
Effect of dilutive securities:

Convertible operating partnership units. . ..........
Employee share options and restricted shares . ......

Denominator for diluted earnings per common share . .
Basic earnings per common share before gain on sale
of properties and discontinued operations ........
Basic earnings per common share from gain on sale of
PIOPEIHES . .. vttt e e
Basic earnings per common share from discontinued
OPETALIONS . ¢ v ettt et e e e ie e

Basic earnings per common share . . ..............

Diluted earnings per common share before gain on
sale of properties and discontinued operations . . . . .

Diluted earnings per common share from gain on sale
of properties . ... ... . . i

Diluted earnings per common share from discontinued
OPErations . . ..o vt ittt i e e e e e

Diluted earnings per common share . .............
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000;

2002 2001 2000
$14,037 $16,176 $16,355
— — 11,134
8,759 1,788 3,044
$22,796 $17,964 $30,533
$22,796 $17,964 $30,533
65 52 82
$22,861 $18,016 $30,615
16,372 16,520 16,531
40 40 40
110 95 60
16,522 16,655 16,631
$ 08 $ 098 § 0.99
— — 0.68
0.53 0.11 0.18
$ 139 § 1.09 $§ 185
$ 08 §$ 097 $ 099
— — 0.67
0.53 011 0.18
$ 138 $ 108 § 1.84

The unvested restricted common share grants (166,664 shares at December 31, 2002) are excluded
from the common shares used to compute basic earnings per share. The unvested restricted common
shares are included in the shares used to compute fully diluted earnings per share using the treasury
stock method whereby the unamortized deferred compensation related to these shares is assumed to be
the exercise value of these shares.
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11. Earnings Per Share (Continued)

The Company had 40,199 operating partnership units held by non-affiliates of the Company
outstanding at December 31, 2002, which are convertible to common shares on a one for one basis at
the option of the holder. ‘

12. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company discloses information concerning the fair value of financial instruments for which it
is practical to estimate such fair values. The carrying amount reported for cash equivalents in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets approximated its fair value. The fair market value of
mortgages payable at December 31, 2002 was $287,036 assuming market interest rates of 4.73% to
5.35%. The fair market value of mortgages payable at December 31, 2001 was $150,569 assuming a
market interest rate of 6.65% to 7.25%. The carrying amounts of bonds payable and the bank loan
payable approximated fair value at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

13. Subsequent Event

On January 16, 2003, the Company entered into a 10-year mortgage loan in an amount of $40,000
secured by the medical office properties. This loan accrues interest at 5.43% per annum payable
monthly along with monthly principal payments based on a 30-year amortization schedule. The
proceeds of the loan were used to repay the $36,000 bank loan payabie secured by the medical office
properties that was outstanding at December 31, 2002.

14. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

3/31/2002 6/36/2002 9/30/2002 12/31/2002

REVEMUES . o oottt e $ 24,397 § 25,089 $ 24,467 $§ 27456
Net income applicable to common shares . ......... $ 4268 $ 5,166 $ 9450 $ 3,912
Basic earnings per common share ............... $ 026 $§ 032 $§ 058 $ 0.24
Diluted earnings per common share . .. ........... $ 026 $ 031 $ 057 $ 0.24

3/31/2001  6/30/2001  9/36/2001 12/31/2001
Revenues . ... ... i $ 23291 §$ 23914 § 24337 § 24,591
Net income applicable to common shares ... ....... $ 4967 $ 4900 $ 4475 $§ 3,622
Basic earnings per common share . .............. $ 030 8 030 $ 027 § 0.22
Diluted earnings per common share .. ............ $ 030 $ 029 $ 027 § 0.22
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15. Pro Forma Information (Unaudited)

The following unaudited pro forma summary presents information as if the Company’s property
acquisitions and property dispositions during the year ended December 31, 2002 had occurred at the
beginning of that year. The pro forma information is provided for informational purposes only. It is
based on historical information and does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have
occurred nor is it necessarily indicative of future results of operations of the Company.

Year Ended

December 31, 2002
Total revenue . . .. ... o e $111,850
Net income applicable to common shares . .................. $ 24,677
Basic earnings per common share . . .............. ... ...... $ 131
Diluted earnings per common share ....................... $ 149
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

823 Commerce Drive, Suite 30
Oak Brook, lllinois 6052

630 368 2900 Phon

630 368 2929 Fa
www.greatlakesreit.com Web sit
info@greatlakesreit.com Emai

Faiviien ia b At o
Ernst & Young LLI

233 South Wacker Drive
Chicago, Illinois 60606

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co
59 Maiden Lang]
New York, New York 10038

Common Shares of Beneficial Interest
NYSE: GL

9-3/4% Series A Cumulative Redeemable
Preferred Shares of Beneficial [nterest

NYSE: GL PrA

VL v N TR PR
10:00 a.m. Wednesday, May 14, 2003
McDonald’s Corporation Office Campus (University Building)
2815 Jorie Boulevard

Oak Brook, Hlinois 60523
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Dividends Paid Monthly.




